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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of PICL (India) Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of PICL (India) Private Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the
Balance sheet as at March 31, 2025, the Statement of Profit and Loss, including the statement of Other
Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended,
and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid financial
statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as amended (“the Act”) in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of
the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2025, its profit including other comprehensive loss, its cash flows
and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs), as specified
under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the *Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements’ section of our report. We are independent of the Company
in accordance with the ‘Code of Ethics’ issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the
Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and
the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

Other Information

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the Director’s report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

The Director’s report is not made available to us as at the date of this auditor's report. We have nothing to report in
this regard.
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Responsibility of Management for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect to
the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial
performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance
with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as
amended. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that
were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists, Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

+  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

¢ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our
opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

«  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.
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*  Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

= Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing
of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. Asrequired by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order™), issued by the Central Government
of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the “Annexure 1” a statement on the
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report, to the extent applicable, that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and
belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books except (a) that the backup of the books of account and other
books and papers maintained in electronic mode has not been maintained on servers physically located in
India on daily basis as stated in Note 53 to the financial statements and (b) for the matters stated in the
paragraph (i)(vi) below on reporting under Rule 11(g);

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other Comprehensive
Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified under
Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended;

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2025 taken on record
by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2025 from being appointed
as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

(f) The modification relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith are as stated
in paragraph (b) above on reporting under Section 143(3)(b) and paragraph (i)(vi) below on reporting under
Rule 11(g);
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(g) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to these financial statements
and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure 2” to this report;

(h) In our opinion, the managerial remuneration for the year ended March 31, 2025 has been paid / provided by
the Company to its directors in accordance with the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the
Act;

(i) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us:

i.  The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its financial
statements — Refer Note 36 to the financial statements;

ii.  The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses;

iii.  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection
Fund by the Company;

iv.  a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds have been
advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or
kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
(“Intermediaries™), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified
in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds have been
received by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding
Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall,
whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee,
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

¢) Based on such audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in
the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations

under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material misstatement.

v.  No dividend has been declared or paid during the year by the Company.
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vi.  Based on our examination which included test checks, the Company has used accounting software for
maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the
same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software except that,
audit trail feature is not enabled for direct changes to data when using certain access rights, as described
in Note 52 to the financial statements. Further, during the course of our audit we did not come across
any instance of audit trail feature being tampered with, in respect of accounting software where the
audit trail has been enabled. Additionally, the audit trail of relevant prior years has been preserved by
the company as per the statutory requirements for record retention, to the extent it was enabled and
recorded in those respective years, as stated in Note 52 to the financial statements.

For S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 301003E/E300005
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per Vishal Sharma
Partner
Membership Number: 096766

UDIN: 25096766BMIOIG5340

Place of Signature: Gurugram
Date: May 16, 2025
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Annexure ‘1’ referred to in paragraph under the heading “Report on other legal and regulatory
requirements” of our report of even date

Re: PICL (India) Private Limited (“the Company™)

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the company and the books of account and
records examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the best of our knowledge and belief, we state that:

(i)a)(A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and
situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangibles assets.
(b) Property, Plant and Equipment have been physically verified by the management during the year and no
material discrepancies were identified on such verification.
(c) The title deeds of all the immovable properties are held in the name of the Company.
(d) The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment or intangible assets during the year

ended March 31, 2025.

(e) There are no proceedings initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any benami property
under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder.

(ii)(a) Physical verification of inventory has been conducted at reasonable intervals during the year by
management. In our opinion, the coverage and procedure of such verification by the management is
appropriate. Inventories lying with third parties have been confirmed by such third parties as at March
31, 2025. There were no discrepancies of 10% or more noticed, in the aggregate for each class of
inventory.

(b) As disclosed in note 22 to the financial statements, the Company has been sanctioned working capital
limits in cxcess of INR five crores in aggregate from banks during the year on the basis of security of
current assets of the Company. Based on the records examined by us in the normal course of audit of the
financial statements, the quarterly statements filed by the Company with such banks are in agreement
with the audited/unaudited books of accounts of the Company. The Company does not have sanctioned
working capital limits in excess of INR five crores in aggregate from financial institutions during the
year on the basis of security of current assets of the Company.

(iii)(a) During the year the Company has not provided loans, advances in the nature of loans, stood guarantee
or provided security to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties.
Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(iii)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) During the year the Company has not made investments, provided guarantees, provided security and
granted loans and advances in the nature of loans to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or
any other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(iii)(b) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company.

(c) The Company has not granted loans and advances in the nature of loans to companies, firms, Limited
Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(iii)(c) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(d) The Company has not granted loans or advances in the nature of loans to companies, firms, Limited
Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(iii)(d) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(e) There were no loans or advance in the nature of loan granted to companies, firms, Limited Liability
Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(iii)(e) of the Order

is not applicable to the Company.
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(f) The Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, either repayable on demand
or without specifying any terms or period of repayment to companies, firms, Limited Liability
Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(iii)(f) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

(iv) There are no loans, investments, guarantees, and security in respect of which provisions of sections 185
and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 are applicable and accordingly, the requirement to report on clause
3(iv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(v) The Company has neither accepted any deposits from the public nor accepted any amounts which are
deemed to be deposits within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the Companies Act and the rules made
thereunder, to the extent applicable. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(v) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

(vi) We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company pursuant to the rules made
by the Central Government for the maintenance of cost records under section 148(1) of the Companies
Act, 2013, related to the manufacture of electric motors, and are of the opinion that prima facie, the
specified accounts and records have been made and maintained. We have not, however, made a detailed
examination of the same

(vii)(a) Undisputed statutory dues including goods and services tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance,
income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of custom, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and other
statutory dues have generally been regularly deposited with the appropriate authorities though there has
been a slight delay in a few cases. According to the information and explanations given to us and based
on audit procedures performed by us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of these statutory dues
were outstanding, at the year end, for a period of more than six months from the date they became
payable.

(b) The dues of goods and services tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax,
service tax, duty of custom, duty of excise, value added tax, cess, and other statutory dues have not been
deposited on account of any dispute, are as follows:

Name of the | Nature of the | Amount Amount Period to Forum where
statute dues (INR in paid which amount dispute is
lakhs) under relates pending
Protest
(INR in
lakhs)
Income tax Income tax 0.79 Nil 2018-19 Commissioner
Act, 1961 of Income tax
(Appeals),
Delhi
(viii) The Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transaction, previously unrecorded in the books of

account, in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the year. Accordingly,
the requirement to report on clause 3(viii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(ix)(a) The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment of interest
thereon to any lender.

(b) The Company has not been declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government
or any government authority.

(c) Term loans were applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained.

(d) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, no funds raised on short-term
basis have been used for long-term purposes by the Company.

(e) The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture. Accordingly, the requirement to
report on clause 3(ix)(e) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. P et
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(x)(a)

(b)

(xi)(a)

(b)

(c)

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)(a)
(b)

(xv)

(xvi)(a)

(b)

(©)

(d)

(xvii)

(xviii)

The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture. Accordingly, the requirement to
report on Clause 3(ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not raised any money during the year by way of initial public offer / further public
offer (including debt instruments) hence, the requirement to report on clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares /fully or partially
or optionally convertible debentures during the year under audit and hence, the requirement to report on
clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

No material fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported
during the year.

During the year, no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 has been
filed in Form ADT — 4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with
the Central Government.

As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received by the
Company during the year.

The Company is not a nidhi Company as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. Therefore, the
requirement to report on clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

Transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 188 of Companies Act, 2013 where
applicable and the details have been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements, as required by the
applicable accounting standards. The provisions of section 177 are not applicable to the Company and
accordingly the requirements to report under clause 3(xiii) of the Order insofar as it relates to section
177 of the Act is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its business.

The internal audit reports of the Company issued till the date of the audit report, for the period under
audit have been considered by us.

The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected with
its directors and hence requirement to report on clause 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

The provisions of section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 (2 of 1934) are nol applicable
to the Company. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause (xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company.

The Company is not engaged in any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities. Accordingly,
the requirement to report on clause (xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company is not a Core Investment Company as defined in the regulations made by Reserve Bank
of India. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(xvi) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

The Group does not have more than one CIC as part of the Group, hence, the requirement to report on
clause 3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current financial year. The Company has not incurred
cash losses in the immediately preceding financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly requirement to
report on Clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.
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(xix)

(xx)(a)

(b)

On the basis of the financial ratios disclosed in note 40 to the financial statements, ageing and expected
dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information
accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans
and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our
attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report
that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when
they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not
an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on
the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all
liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the
Company as and when they fall due.

In respect of other than ongoing projects, there arc no unspent amounts that are required to be transferred
to a fund specified in Schedule VII of the Companies Act (the Act), in compliance with second proviso
to sub section 5 of section 135 of the Act. This matter has been disclosed in note 48 to the financial
statements.

There are no unspent amounts in respect of ongoing projects, that are required to be transferred to a
special account in compliance of provision of sub section (6) of section 135 of Companies Act. This
matter has been disclosed in note 48 to the financial statements.

For S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 301003E/E300005
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per Vishal Sharma

Partner
Membership Number: 096766

UDIN: 25096766BMI01G5340

Place of Signature: Gurugram
Date: May 16, 2025
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Annexure ‘2’ to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date on the financial statements of PICL (India)
Private Limited

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of PICL (India) Private Limited
(“the Company™) as of March 31, 2025 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for
the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the
internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”). These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring
the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of
its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to these
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, as
specified under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both
issued by ICAI Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with
reference to these financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all
material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls with reference to these financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with
reference to these financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating
the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend
on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to these financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls With Reference to these Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the
assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts
and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors
of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.
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Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls With Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud
may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control with reference to
financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with
the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to financial statements were operating
effectively as at March 31, 2025, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAL

For S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 301003E/E300005

I

per Vishal Sharma
Partner
Membership Number: 096766

UDIN: 25096766BMIOIGS5340

Place of Signature: Gurugram
Date: May 16, 2025



PICL (India) Private Limited

CIN: U74899HR1994PTC113718

Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2025

(All amounts in INR in lakh unless otherwise stated)

ASSETS

Non-current assets
Property, plant and cquipment
Capital work-in-progress

t
[ntangible assets under development

[ntangible assets
Financial asscts
Other financial assers
Income tax asscts (net)
Orther non-current assets

Total non-current assets

Current assets
Inventories
IFinancial assets
Trade recevables
Cash and cash cquivalents
Orther bank balances
Loans
Other financial assets
Other current assets
‘Total current assets
Total assets

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY

liquity sharc capital

Other cquity

Total equity

LIABILITIES

Non-current liabilities

Financial liabilitics
Borrowings

Provisions

Government grants

Deferred tax habilities (net)

Total non-current liabilities

Current liabilities
Iinancial liabilities
Borrowings
Trade payables
(2) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises
(b) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises
and small enterprises
Other financial Labilities
Other current liabilitics
Provisions
Government grants
Total current liabilities
Total liabilities
Total equity and liabilities

Summary of material accounting policies

The accompanying notes are an integral part of financial statements

Notes

11

12

13

14
14A

15
16

17
18

19
20
20A

21

22

23

24
25
26

26A

[§5]

As at
31 March 2025

As at
31 March 2024

14,920.82 14,060.97
1,756.92 61103
1,791.64 1,528.54

974.97 700.97

3229 31.21
137.83 189.97
230.13 407.07

19,844.60 17,529.76
3,403.04 2,544.38
5,619.76 6,146.14
1,810.25 1,818.81

6.24 =

9.47 -
230.98 9.06
599.39 432,42
11,679.13 10,950.81
31,523.73 28,480.57
364.21 364.21

6,713.03 4,801.57
7,077.24 5,165.78
7,534.12 8,557.93

167.00 150.39
198.46 -
539.28 33248

8,438.86 9,040.80

2,105.10 2,082.44
179.59 453.15
12,438.22 10,714.45
895.63 948.37
356.17 63.41
13.00 12.17
19.92 -

16,007.63 14,273.99

24,446.49 23,314.79

31,523.73 28,480.57

As per our report of even date attached

For S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAT Firm Registration Number : 30100315/ 12300005

NPV ey

per Vishal Sharma B
Partner 7

Membership Number : 096766 ’

Place: Gurugram
Date: 16 May 2025

Place: Gurugram
Date: 16 May 2025

Place: Gurugrim
Date: 16 May 2025

Place: Gurugrimi
Date: 16 May 2025




PICL (India) Private Limited

CIN: U74899HR1994PTC113718

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2025
(All amounts in INR in lakh unless otherwise stated)

Income

Revenue from operations
Other income

Total income

Expenses

Cost of raw materials consumed

Purchase of traded goods

Changes in inventories of intermediate products and finished goods
Iimployee benefits expense

I'inance costs

Depreciation and amortisation expense

Other expenses

Total expense

Profit before tax

Tax expense
Current tax
Adjustment of tax relating to carlier periods
Deferred tax charge

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive (loss)

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Re-measurement (loss) on defined benefit obligations
Income tax relating to these items

Other comprehensive (loss) for the year, net of tax

Total comprehensive income for the year, net of tax

Earning per equity share
(Nominal value of equity share INR 10 each)

Basic and diluted (INR)

Summary of material accounting policies

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements

Notes

27

28

30
31
32
33
34

38
38
38

38

35

381

For the year ended
31 March 2025

For the year ended
31 March 2024

48,238.79 33,876.77
128.32 151.80
48,367.11 34,028.57
33,817.53 24,209.19
2,544.00 792.87
(518.25) 106.05
1,401.95 1,157.84
1,267.27 1,422.74
1,279.11 1,090.21
6,046.64 4,254.24
45,838.25 33,033.14
2,528.86 995.43
451.34 164.60
(4.64) .

208.12 116.02
1,874.04 714.81
(5.25) (5.44)

132 1.37
(3.93) (4.07)
1,870.11 710.74
51.45 19.63

As per our report of even date attached

For S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number : 30100314/1300005

NIV s

per Vishal Sharma )
Partner P - N
Membership Number : 096766 : '

Place: Gurugram \ /
Date: 16 May 2025 \ ~

DIN No.: 02023964

Place: Gurugram
Date: 16 May 2025

Place: Gurugram
Date: 16 May 2025

Company Secrétary
Membership Number: A39003

Place: Gurugram
Date: 16 May 2025



PICL (India) Private Limited

CIN: U74899HR1994PTC113718

Statement of Cash Flows for the vear ended 31 March 2025
(All amounts in INR in lakh unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended
31 March 2025

For the year ended
31 March 2024

A. Cash flows from operating activities

Profit before tax
Adjustments to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows:
Deprecianion and amortisation expense
Government grant income
Interest income
Unrealised foreign exchange gain
Advances and other balances written off
(Gain) on disposal of property, plant and equipment (net)
Loss on account of unapproved product development
Share based payment expenses
Bad debts
FFair value loss on financials instruments
Liabilities no longer required written back

Finance costs

Working capital adjustments:
Decrease/ (increase) in trade receivables
(Increase)/decrease in inventories
(Increase) /decrease in non-financial asscts
(Increase)/decrease in financial asscrs
Increase in trade payables
Increase in provisions
Increase/ (decrease) in non-financial liabilities
Increase in financial liabilities

Cash generated from operations
Income tax paid (net)

Net cash flows from operating activities A

B. Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and cquipment, capital work in progress, intangible
assets and intangible assets under development
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment
Movement in bank deposits (net)
Interest received on bank deposits 7
Net cash flows used in investing activities B

C Cash flows from financing activities:
Repayments of short-term borrowings (net)
Proceeds from long term borrowings
Repayments of long term borrowings
Finance costs paid
Net cash flows (used in)/from financing activities C

D Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalent (A+B+C)

E Cash and cash equivalent at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalent at the end of the year (D+E) {refer note 13}

(This space has been intentionally left blank)

2,528.86 995.43
1,279.11 1,090.21
(0.76) -
(0.27) (24.16)
(95.68) (11.60)
0.07 -
- (0.07)
51.82 107.14
41.35 73.04
18.08
15.40 =
(7.04) (28.18)
1,267.27 1,422.74
508.30 (1,054.89)
(B58.606) 146.43
(164.20) 439.07
(231.71) 9.39
1,552.93 790.68
12.20 25.54
511.15 (65.96)
BR.78 67.45
6,517.00 3,982.26
(394.57) (282.30)
6,122.43 3,699.90
(3,828.78) (3,285.56)
- 2.90
(6.00) 863.70
0.03 41.88
(3,834.75) (2,377.08)
(77.79) (922.21)
1,458.38 6,428.64
(2,382.78) (3,927.58)
(1,294.05) (1,387.80)
(2,296.24) 191.05
(8.56) 1,513.87
1,818.81 304.94
1,810.25 1,818.81




PICL (India) Private Limited

CIN: U74899HR1994PTC113718

Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 March 2025
(All amounts in INR in lakh unless otherwise stated)

Cash and Cash Equivalents includes (refer note 13):

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Balances with banks:
- in current and cash credit accounts 1,810.25 1,818.81
Cash and cash equivalents 1,810.25 1,818.81

[§%)

Summary of material accounting policies
The accompanying notes are an integral part of financial statements

Refer note 19(11) for change in liabilities arising from financing activitics.
As per our report of even date attached

For S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants
[CAI Firm Registration Number : 301003E/ 1300005

[

per Vishal Sharma
Partner P == ~ :
Membership Number : 096766 AN N DIN No.: 02023964
/ Z B
Place: Gurugram | rueram) I, Place: Gurugram Place: Gurugram Place: Gurugram

Date: 16 May 2025 Date: 16 May 2025 Date: 16 May 2025 Date: 16 May 2025



PICL (India) Private Limited

CIN: UT4899HRI99PTCI13718

Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31 March 2025
(All amounts in INR in lakh unless otherwise stated)

A Equity share capital

No. of shares Amount

For the year ended 31 March 2025

At 1 April 2024 36,42,100 364.21
(hanges i equity share capital during the year - -
At 31 March 2025 36,42,100 364.21
For the year ended 31 March 2024

Au L April 2023 36,42,100 364.21
Changes m equaty share capital durmg the vear 5 -
At 31 March 2024 36,42,100 364.21

B Other equity

Reserves and surplus (refer note 18)
Particulars Capital contribution Employee stock
Securities premium General reserve from Holding option outstanding | Retained earnings Total
Company account
For the year ended 31 March 2023
Au 1 April 2024 0.05 34.48 - 177.33 4,562.71 4,801.57
Profit for the year - - - 1L87-h04 187404
Share based payment expenses (refer note 47) - +1.35 - 4135
Lixercise of share options (refer note 47) - - 13.72 (13.72) - s
Remeasurement (loss) of defed benefit obhgatons (net of tax) % 2 % - (3.93) (3.93)
At 31 March 2025 0.05 54.48 13.72 204.96 6,439.82 6,713.03
For the year ended 31 March 2024
At 1 April 2023 0.05 54.48 - 104.29 3,858.97 4,017.79
Profit for the year - - - - 71481 71481
Share based payment expenses (refer note 47) - - - T304 = 7304
Remeasurement (loss) of defined benefit obligations (net of tax) - - - - H07) (H4.07)
At 31 March 2024 0.05 54.48 - 177.33 4,569.71 4,801.57

)

Summary of material accounting policies
‘The accompanying notes are an integral part of financial statements

As per our report of even dare artached

For S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
1CAL Firm Regastration Number @ 30100312/ E300005

NI

ishal Sharma B N
Partmer i N\ y
/ \
Membership Number : 096766 / N | N i DIN: 0729050
| VAT \
Place: Gurugram \ : ! Place: Gurugram Place: Gurugram Place: Gurugram
Date: 16 May 2025 \ ~ Date: 16 May 2025 Date: 16 May 2025 Date: 16 May 2025



PICL (India) Private Limited
CIN: U74899HR1994PTC113718
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

1

Corporate information
The financial statements comprise financial statements of PICL (India) Private Limited (the Company)
(CIN: U74899HR1994PTC113718) for the year ended 31 March 2025.

The Company is a deemed public limited company domiciled in India and is incorporated under the
provisions of the Companies Act applicable in India. The registered office of the company is located
at Second Floor, Khasra No. 367, 100 Foote Road, Village Ghitorni, South West, South Delhi, New
Delhi-110030.

The Company is principally engaged in the manufacturing and trading of electric motors.

The financial statements were approved for issue in accordance with a resolution of the directors on
16 May 2025.

Material accounting policies

Statement of compliance and basis of preparation

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as
amended from time to time) and presentation requirements of Division IT of Schedule III to the
Companies Act, 2013, ,(as amended from time to time) (Ind AS compliant Schedule III), as applicable
to the SFS.

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following assets
and liahiliries which have heen measured at fair value:
e Derivative financial instruments, and
e Certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value (refer accounting policy regarding
financial instruments)

e [quity settled ESOP at grant date fair value at each reporting date.

The financial statements are presented in INR and all values are rounded to the nearest lakh (INR

00,000), except when otherwise indicated.

The Company has prepared the financial statements on the basis that it will continue to operate as a

going concern.

Summary of material accounting policies
Current versus non-current classification
The Company segregates assets and liabilities into current and non-current categories for presentation
in the balance sheet after considering its normal operating cycle and other criteria set out in Ind AS 1,
“Presentation of Financial Statements”. For this purpose, current assets and liabilities include the
current portion of non-current assets and liabilities respectively. Deferred tax assets and labilities are

always classified as non-current.

e




PICL (India) Private Limited
CIN: U74899HR1994PTC113718
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in
cash and cash equivalents. The Company has identified period up to twelve months as its operating

cycle.

Foreign currencies
The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupee (INR), which is the Company’s functional

currency.

Transactions and balances
Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Company’s at functional currency spot
rates at the date the transaction first qualifies for recognition. However, for practical reasons, the

Company uses an average rate if the average approximates the actual rate at the date of the transaction.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional

currency spot rates of exchange at the reporting date.

Fixchange differences arising on settlement ot translation of monetary items are recognised in the

Statement of profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair
value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value is
determined. The gain or loss arising on translation of non-monetary items measured at fair value is
treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on the change in fair value of the item (ie.,
translation differences on items whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in OCI or profit or loss are

also recognised in OCI or profit or loss, respectively).

In determining the spot exchange rate to use on initial recognition of the related asset, expense or
income (or part of it) on the derecognition of a non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability relating
to advance consideration, the date of the transaction is the date on which the Company initially
recognises the non-monetary asset or non-monetaty liability arising from the advance consideration. If
there are multiple payments or receipts in advance, the Company determines the transaction date for

each payment or receipt of advance consideration.

Fair value measurement
The Company measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each balance sheet

date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement 1s based
on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

* In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

y .
RN




PICL (India) Private Limited
CIN: U74899HR1994PTC113718
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

* In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or hability
The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would
use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best

interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another

market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and

minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and labilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:
e level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
e level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is directly or indirectly observable
e TLevel 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair

value measurement 1s unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company
determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing
categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a

whole) at the end of each reporting period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities
on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value

hierarchy as explained above.

This note summatises accounting policy for fair value. Other fair value related disclosures are given in
the relevant notes.
e Disclosures for valuation methods, significant estimates and assumptions (notes 3, 43 and 44)
e [Financial instruments (including those carried at amortised cost) (notes 8, 12, 13, 14, 14A, 15, 19,
22,23,24,43 and 44)
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CIN: U74899HR1994PTC113718
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

d. Revenue from contract with customer
Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods or services are
transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects
to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. The Company has generally concluded that it is
the principal in its revenue arrangements because it typically controls the goods or services before

transferring them to the customer.

The disclosures of significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions relating to revenue

from contracts with customers are provided in Note 3.

Sale of products
Revenue from sale of products is recognised at the point in time when control of the asset is transferred

to the customer, generally on delivery of the products. The normal credit term 1s 07 to 90 days upon

delivery.

Revenue towards satisfaction of a performance obligation is measured at the amount of transaction
price (net of variable consideration) allocated to that performance obligation. The transaction price of
goods sold and services rendered is net of variable consideration on account of various schemes offered

by the Company as part of the contract.

Variable consideration

If the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount, the Company estimates the amount of
consideration to which it will be entitled in exchange for transferring the goods to the customer. The
variable cousideration is estimated at contract incepion and constained undl it is highly probable that
a significant revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur when the
associated uncertainty with the variable consideration is subsequently resolved. Some contracts for the
sale of products provide customers with a right of return. The rights of return give rise to variable

consideration.

e Rights of return
The Company uses the expected value method to estimate the variable consideration given the
large number of contracts that have similar characteristics. The Company then applies the
requirements on constraining estimates of variable consideration in order to determine the
amount of variable consideration that can be included in the transaction price. A refund liability
is recognized for the goods that are expected to be returned (i.e., the amount not included in the
transaction price). A right of return asset (and corresponding adjustment to cost of sales) is also

recognised for the right to recover the goods from a customer.

Other revenue streams

Interest Income
For all debt instruments measured at amortised cost, interest income is recorded using the effective
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expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Company estimates the
expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example,
prepayment, extension, call and similar options) but does not consider the expected credit losses.

Interest income is included in “other income” in the Statement of Profit and .oss.

Interest income on fixed deposits is recognised on a time proportion basis taking into account the
amount outstanding and the applicable interest rate. Interest income is included under the head “other

income” in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Contract balances

Trade receivables

A receivable is recognised if an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e., only the passage of
time is required before payment of the consideration is due). Refer to accounting policies of financial
assets in section (n) Financial instruments — initial recognition and subsequent measurement.
Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised if a payment is received, or a payment is due (whichever is earlier)
from a customer before the Company transfers the related goods or services. Contract liabilities are
recognised as revenue when the Company performs under the contract (i.e., transfers control of the

related goods or services to the customer).

e. Government grants
Government grants are recognised where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received,
and all attached conditons will be complied with. When the grant relates to an expense item, it is
recognised as income on a systematic basis over the periods that the related costs, for which it is
intended to compensate, are expensed. When the grant relates to an asset, it is recognised as income in

equal amounts over the expected useful life of the related asset.
f. Taxes

Tax expense comptises current tax expense and deferred tax.

Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or
paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that
are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date in the country where the Company operates

and generates taxable income.

Cutrent income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss 1s recognised outside profit or
loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are recognised in correlation
to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates
positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are

subject to interpretation and considers whether it is probable that a taxation authority will
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uncertain tax treatment. The Company shall reflect the effect of uncertainty for each uncertain tax
treatment by using either most likely method or expected value method, depending on which method

predicts better resolution of the treatment.

Deferred tax
Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet approach on temporary differences between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting

date.

Deferred rax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:
e When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss and does not give rise to equal taxable and

deductible temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused

tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable

that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry
forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

e When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial

recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the

time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss and does

not give tise to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date
and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the

deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year
when the asset is realised, or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been

enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss
(either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation

to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.

The Company offsets deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities if and only if it has a legally
enforceable right to set off cutrent tax assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and
deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority which intends either

to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle th
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simultaneously, in each future period in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets

are expected to be settled or recovered.
Goods and Services Tax (GST) paid on acquisition of assets or on Incurting expenses

Expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of Goods and Service Tax paid, except:
e  When the tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the taxation
authority, in which case, the tax paid is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset
ot as part of the expense item, as applicable

e  When receivables and payables are stated with the amount of tax included

The net amount of tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of

other current assets/ liabilities in the balance sheet.

g. Property, plant and equipment

Capital work in progress is stated at cost, net of accumulated impairment loss, if any. Plant and
equipment ate stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if
any. Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of the plant and equipment and borrowing costs for
long-term construction projects if the recognition criteria are met. When significant parts of plant and
equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Company depreciates them separately based on
their specific useful lives. Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in the
carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied.
All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:

Block of asset Useful life as per Companies Act, 2013 (in
years)
Building 30
Plant and machinery 8-15
Computer 3
Furniture and fixture 10
Office equipment 5-10
Vehicles 8

The Company, based on technical assessment made by technical expert and management estimate,
depreciates certain items of plant and equipment over estimated useful lives which are different from
the useful life prescribed in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013. The management believes that
these estimated useful lives are realistic and reflect fair approximation of the period over which the

assets are likely to be used.
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The Company reviews the estimated residual values and expected useful lives of assets at least annually.
In particular, the Company considers the impact of health, safety and environmental legislation in its

assessment of expected useful lives and estimated residual values.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised 1s derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or
loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is

derecognised.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are

reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial
recognition, intangible‘assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses. Internally generated intangibles, excluding capitalised development costs, are not
capitalised and the related expenditure is reflected in profit or loss in the period in which the
expenditure is incurred.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as finite.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for
impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation
period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least
at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of
consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are considered to modify the
amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The
amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognised in the statement of profit and

loss unless such expenditure forms part of carrying value of another asset.

An intangible asset is derecognised upon disposal (i.e., at the date the recipient obtains control) or when
no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising upon
derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset) is included in the statement of profit and loss. when the asset is

derecognised.

Research and development costs
Research costs are expensed as mcurred. Development expenditures on an individual project are
recognised as an intangible asset when the Company can demonstrate:

e The technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that the asset will be available for

use or sale
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i

e Its intention to complete and its ability and intention to use or sell the asset
e How the asset will generate future economic benefits
® The availability of resources to complete the asset

® The ability to measure reliably the expenditure during development

Following initial recognition of the development expenditure as an asset, the asset is carried at cost less
any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation of the asset begins
when development is complete, and the asset is available for use. It is amortised over the period of
expected future benefit. Amortisation expense is recognised in the statement of profit and loss unless
such expenditure forms part of carrying value of another asset. During the period of development, the

asset 1s tested for impairment annually.

A summary of the policies applied to the Company’s intangible assets is, as follows:

Intangible assets Useful lives Amortisation method used Internally generated or
acquired
Computer software Finite (6 years) Amortised on a straight-line basis Acquired
over the period of the asset
Development costs Finite (7 years) Amortised on a straight-line basis Internally generated

over the period of expected future
sales from the related project

Patent and trademark Finite (10 years) Amortised on a straight-line basts Acquired

over the period of the asset

Leases
The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for

consideration.

Company as a lessee

The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-
term leases and leases of low-value assets. The Company recognises lease liabilities to make lease
payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases of building,
machinery and equipment (ie., those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the
commencement date and do not contain a purchase option). It also applies the lease of low-value assets
recognition exemption to leases of office equipment that are considered to be low value. Lease
payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-

line basis over the lease term.
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The Company applies the low-value assets recognition exemption on a lease-by-lease basis. In
making this assessment, the Company also factors below key aspects:

e The assessment is conducted on an absolute basis and is independent of the size, nature,
ot circumstances of the lessee.

e The assessment is based on the value of the asset when new, regardless of the asset's age
at the time of the lease.

e The lessee can benefit from the use of the underlying asset either independently or in
combination with other readily available resources, and the asset is nor highly dependent
on or interrelated with other assets.

e If the asset is subleased or expected to be subleased, the head lease does not qualify as

a lease of a low-value asset.

Company as a lessor

Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of an asset is classified as operating leases. Rental income arising is accounted for on a
straight-line basis over the lease terms. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an
operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease term
on the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the period in which

they are earned.

Inventories
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Costs incurred in bringing each product to its present location and condition are accounted for as
follows:
e Raw materials: cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories
to their present location and condition. Cost is determined on first in, first out basts.
¢ Finished goods and intermediate products: cost includes cost of direct materials and labour and
a proportion of manufacturing overheads based on the normal operating capacity but excluding
borrowing costs. Cost is determined on first in, first out basis.
e Traded goods: cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories
to their present location and condition. Cost is determined on first in, first out basts.
e Stores and spares, consumables and packing materials: cost includes cost of purchase and other
costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Cost is

determined on first in, first out basis.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs

of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Impairment of non-financial assets
The Companv assesses, at each reportmg date, whcther there is an mdicatlon that an asset Ay be
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Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an
asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The
recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash
inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. When the carrying
amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is

written down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are
taken into account. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used.
These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded

companies or other available fair value indicators.

The Company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations, which are
prepared separately for each of the Company’s CGUs to which the individual assets are allocated. These
budgets and forecast calculations generally cover a period of five years. For longer periods, a long-term
growth rate is calculated and applied to project future cash flows after the fifth year. To estimate cash
flow projections beyond periods covered by the most recent budgets/forecasts, the Company
extrapolates cash flow projections in the budget using a steady or declining growth rate for subsequent
years, unless an increasing rate can be justified. In any case, this growth rate does not exceed the long-
term average growth rate for the products, industries, or country or countries in which the Company

operates, ot for the market in which the asset is used.

Impairment losses, including impairment on inventories, are recognised in the statement of profit and

loss.

The impairment assessment for all assets is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is
an indication that previously recognised impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased. If such
indication exists, the Company estimates the asset’s or CGU’s recoverable amount. A previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to
determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. The reversal
is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss
been recognised for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised in the statement of profit and

loss.
1. Provisions and Contingent liabilities
Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result
of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be

required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the o
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When the Company expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example, under an
insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, but only when the
reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to a provision is presented in the statement of

profit and loss net of any reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax
rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the

increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

Contingent Liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly
within the control of the entity or a present obligation that arises from past events but is not recognized
because it is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.
The Company does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial

statements as per the requirements of Ind AS 37.
Provisions and contingent liabilities are reviewed at each balance sheet date.

m. Retirement and other employee benefits
Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The Company has
no obligation, other than the contribution payable to the provident fund. The Company recognizes
contribution payable to the provident fund scheme as an expense, when an employee renders the
related service. If the contribution payable to the scheme for service received before the balance sheet
date exceeds the contribution already paid, the deficit payable to the scheme is recognized as a liability
after deducting the contribution already paid. If the contribution already paid exceeds the contribution
due for services received before the balance sheet date, then excess is recognized as an asset to the

extent that the pre-payment will lead to, for example, a reduction in future payment or a cash refund.

The Company operates a defined benefit gratuity plan in India, which requires contributions to be

made to a separately administered fund.

The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plan is determined using the projected unit
credit method.

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding
amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets
(excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit hability), are recognised
immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through OCI
in the period in which they occur. Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent

periods.
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Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset. The
Company recognises the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation as an expense in the
statement of profit and loss:
e Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on curtailments
and non-routine settlements; and

e Net interest expense or lncome

Accumulated leave, which is expected to be utilized within the next 12 months, is treated as short-term
employee benefit. The Company measures the expected cost of such absences as the additional amount
that it expects to pay as a result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the reporting date.
The Company recognizes expected cost of short-term employee benefit as an expense, when an

employee renders the related service.

The Company treats accumulated leave expected to be carried forward beyond twelve months, as long-
term employee benefit for measurement purposes. Such long-term compensated absences are provided

for based on the actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method at the reporting date.

Remeasurement gains/ losses are immediately taken to the statement of profit and loss and are not
deferred. The obligations are presented as current liabilities in the balance sheet if the entity does not
have an unconditional right to defer the settlement for at least twelve months after the reporting date.

n. Share-based payments
Employees (including senior executives) of the Company receive remuneration in the form of Holding
Company’s share-based payments, whereby employees render services as consideration for equity

instruments (equity-settled transactions).

Equity-settled transactions
The cost of equity-settled transactions is determined by the fair value at the date when the grant is

made using an appropriate valuation model.

That cost is recognised, together with a corresponding increase in share-based payment (SBP) reserves
in equity, over the period in which the performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled in employee
benefits expense. The cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled transactions at each reporting
date until the vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting period has expired and the Holding
Company’s best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. The expense or
credit in the statement of profit and loss for a period represents the movement in cumulative expense
recognised as at the beginning and end of that period and is recognised in employee benefits expense.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not taken into account when determining the grant
date fair value of awards, but the likelihood of the conditions being met is assessed as part of the
Holding Company’s best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. Market
performance conditions are reflected within the grant date fair value. Any other conditions attached to
@) Pri yc?/@




PICL (India) Private Limited
CIN: U74899HR1994PTC113718
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

an award, but without an associated service requirement, are considered to be non-vesting conditions.
Non-vesting conditions are reflected in the fair value of an award and lead to an immediate expensing

of an award unless there are also service and/or performance conditions.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market performance
and/or service conditions have not been met. Where awards include a market or non-vesting condition,
the transactions are treated as vested irrespective of whether the market or non-vesting condition is

satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or service conditions are satisfied.

When the terms of an equity-scttled award are modified, the minimum expense recognised is the grant
date fair value of the unmodified award, provided the original vesting terms of the award are met. An
additional expense, measured as at the date of modification, is recognised for any modification that
increases the total fair value of the share-based payment transaction, or is otherwise beneficial to the
employee. Where an award is cancelled by the Holding Company or by the counterparty, any remaining

element of the fair value of the award 1s expensed immediately through profit or loss.

Financial instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial

liability or equity instrument of another entity.
Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement
['inancial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently mcasurced at amortised cost, fair

value through other comprehensive income (OCI), and fair value through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial asset’s contractual
cash flow characteristics and the Company’s business model for managing them. With the exception
of trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component or for which the Company
has applied the practical expedient, the Company initially measures a financial asset at its fair value plus,
in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables
that do not contain a significant financing component or for which the Company has applied the
practical expedient are measured at the transaction price determined under Ind AS 115. Refer to the

accounting policies in section (d) Revenue from contracts with customers.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised cost or fair value through OCI,
it needs to give rise to cash flows that are ‘solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI)’ on the
principal amount outstanding. This assessment is referred to as the SPPI test and is performed at an
instrument level. Financial assets with cash flows that are not SPPI are classified and measured at fair

value through profit or loss, irrespective of the business model.
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The Company’s business model for managing financial assets refers to how it manages its financial
assets in order to generate cash flows. The business model determines whether cash flows will result
from collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both. Financial assets classified
and measured at amortised cost are held within a business model with the objective to hold financial
assets in order to collect contractual cash flows while financial assets classified and measured at fair
value through OCI are held within a business model with the objective of both holding to collect

contractual cash flows and selling.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, t.e.,

the date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Subsequent measurement
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:
e Financial assets at amortised cost
e Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) with recycling of
cumulative gains and losses
e Financial assets designated at fair value through OCI with no recycling of cumulative gains and
losses upon derecognition

e [inancial assets at Fair Value through profit and loss (I'VIPL)

Financial assets at amortised cost
A ‘financial assets’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:
a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting
contractual cash flows, and
b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

This category is the most relevant to the Company. After initial measurement, such financial assets are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised
cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that
are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in other income in the statement of
profit and loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.
This category generally applies to trade receivables, security deposits and other recetvables. For more

information on receivables, refer note 8, 12, 14A and 15.

Financial assets at FVTOCI
A “financial assets’ is classified as at the FVTOCI if both of the following criteria are met:
a) The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows
and selling the financial assets, and
b) The asset’s contractual cash flows represent Solely Payments of Principal and Interest.




PICL (India) Private Limited
CIN: U74899HR1994PTC113718
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

Financial assets included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting
date at fair value. Fair value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive income (OCI).
However, the Company recognizes interest income, impairment losses & reversals and foreign
exchange gain or loss in the Profit and loss. On derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss

previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from the equity to Profit and loss.

Financial assets designated at fair value through OCI (equity instruments)

Upon initial recognition, the Company can elect to classify irrevocably its equity investments as equity
instruments designated at fair value through OCI when they meet the definition of equity under Ind
AS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation and are not held for trading. The classification is determined

on an instrument-by-instrument basis.

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never recycled to profit or loss. Dividends are recognised
as other income in the statement of profit and loss when the right of payment has been established,
except when the Company benefits from such proceeds as a recovery of part of the cost of the financial
asset, in which case, such gains are recorded in OCI. Equity instruments designated at fair value through

OCI are not subject to impairment assessment.

Financial assets at FVTPL
Financial assets included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes

recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Derecognition
A financial asset (ot, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of sundlar {inuncial
assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e. removed from the Company’s balance sheet) when:
e The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or
e The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a
‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially

all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a
pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of
ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the
asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Company continues to recognise the transferred asset to
the extent of the Company’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Company also recognises an
associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects

the rights and obligations that the Company has retained.
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Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at
the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that

the Company could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company recognises an allowance for expected credit losses (ECLs) for all debt instruments not
held at fair value through profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference between the contractual cash
flows due in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Company expects to receive,
discounted at an approximation of the original effective interest rate. The expected cash flows will
include cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the

contractual terms.

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which there has not been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from
default events that are possible within the next 12-months (a 12-month ECL). For those credit
exposures for which there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss
allowance is required for credit losses expected over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of
the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).

For trade receivables, the Company applies a simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Therefore, the
Company does not track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime
ECLs at each reporting date. The Company has established a provision matrix that is based on its
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the

economic environment.

Financial liabilities

Iaitial recognition ,measurement and presentation

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit

or loss, loans and borrowings or as payables as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and

payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including

bank overdrafts other financial liabilities and derivative financial instruments.

Subsequent measurement
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial liabilities are classified in two categories:
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Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and

financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing

in the near term.
Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss only if the
criteria in Ind AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses
attributable to changes in own credit risk are recognized in OCI. These gains/ losses are not
subsequently transferred to P&L. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss
within equity. All other changes in fair value of such liability are recognised in the statement of profit

and loss. The Company has not designated any financial liability as at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (Loans and borrowings)

This is the category most relevant to the Company. After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are
recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation

pl’OCCSS.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees
ot costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the

statement of profit and loss.
This category generally applies to borrowings. For more information, refer note 19 and 22.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or
expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability.
The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Reclassification of financial assets

The Company determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognition. After
initial recognition, no reclassification is made for financial assets which are equity instruments and
financial liabilities. For financial assets which are debt instruments, a reclassification is made only if
there is a change in the business model for managing those assets. Changes to the business model are
expected to be infrequent. The Company’s senior management determines change in the business
model as a result of external or internal changes which are significant to the Company’s operations.

Such changes are evident to external parties. A change in the business model occurs when
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either begins or ceases to perform an activity that is significant to its operations. If the Company
reclassifies financial assets, it applies the reclassification prospectively from the reclassification date
which is the first day of the immediately next reporting period following the change in business model.
The Company does not restate any previously recognised gains, losses (including impairment gains or

losses) or interest.

The following table shows various reclassification and how they are accounted tor:

Original classification | Revised classification | Accounting treatment

Amortised cost FVIPL Fair value is measured at reclassification date.
Difference between previous amortized cost
and fair value is recognised in Statement of
Profit and Loss

FVIPL Amortised Cost Fair value at reclassification date becomes its
new gross carrying amount. EIR is calculated
based on the new gross carrying amount
Amortised cost FVTOCI Fair value is measured at reclassification date.
Difference between previous amortised cost
and fair value is recognised in OCI. No
change in EIR due to reclassification
FVTOCI Amortised cost Fair value at reclassification date becomes its
new amortised cost carrying —amount.
However, cumulative gain or loss in OCI is
adjusted against fair value. Consequently, the
asset is measured as if it had always been

measured at amortised cost

FVTPL. FVTOCI Fair value at reclassification date becomes its
new carrying amount. No other adjustment is
required

FVTOCI FVTPL Assets continue to be measured at fair value.,
Cumulative gain or loss previously recognised
in OCI i1s reclassified to Statement of Profit
and Loss at the reclassification date

Offsetting of financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet
if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention

to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.
Derivative financial instruments

Initial recognition and subsequent measurement

The Company uses derivative financial instruments, such as forward currency contracts, to hedge its
foreign currency risks. Such derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the
date on which a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at fair value.
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2.5

Derivatives are carried as financial assets when the fair value is positive and as financial liabilities when

the fair value is negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of derivatives are taken directly to profit or
loss, except for the effective portion of cash flow hedges (if any), which is recognised in OCI and later
reclassified to profit or loss when the hedge item affects profit or loss or treated as basis adjustment if
a hedged forecast transaction subsequently results in the recognition of a non-financial asset or non-

financial liability.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term
deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, that are readily convertible to a known

amount of cash and subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-
term deposits, as defined above, as they are considered an integral part of the Company’s cash

management.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as
part of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur.
Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the
borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an

adjustment to the borrowing costs.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss attributable to equity holders of
Company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. The
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for events such as
bonus issue, bonus element in a rights issue, share split, and reverse share split (consolidation of shares)
that have changed the number of equity shares outstanding, without a corresponding change in

resources.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period
attributable to equity shareholders of the Company and the weighted average number of shares
outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

New and amended standards
Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards
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has applied for the first-time certain standards and amendments, which are effective for annual periods

beginning on or after April 01, 2024,
(1) Ind AS 117 Insurance Contracts

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) notified the Ind AS 117, Insurance Contracts, vide
notification dated August 12, 2024, under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment
Rules, 2024, which is effective from annual reporting periods beginning on or after April 01, 2024,

Ind AS 117 Insurance Contracts is a comprehensive new accounting standard for insurance contracts
covering recognition and measurement, presentation and disclosure. Ind AS 117 replaces Ind AS 104
Insurance Contracts. Ind AS 117 applies to all types of insurance contracts, regardless of the type of
entities that issue them as well as to certain guarantees and financial instruments with discretionary
participation features; a few scope exceptions will apply. Ind AS 117 is based on a general model,

supplemented by:

- A specific adaptation for contracts with direct participation features (the variable fee approach)
- A simplified approach (the premium allocation approach) mainly for short-duration contracts

The application of Ind AS 117 does not have material impact on the Company’s separate financial
statements as the Company has not entered any contracts in the nature of insurance contracts covered
under Ind AS 117.

(i) Amendments to Ind AS 116 Leases — Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback

The MCA notified the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Second Amendment Rules, 2024,
which amend Ind AS 116, Leases, with respect to Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback.

The amendment specifies the requirements that a seller-lessee uses in measuring the lease liability arising
in a sale and leaseback transaction, to ensure the seller-lessee does not recognise any amount of the gain

or loss that relates to the right of use it retains.

The amendment is effective for annual reporting petiods beginning on or after April 01, 2024 and must
be applied retrospectively to sale and leaseback transactions entered into after the date of initial

application of Ind AS 116.
The amendments do not have a material impact on the Company’s financial statements.

The Company has not early adopted any standard, interpretation or amendment that has been issued

but is not yet effective.
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2.4 Standards notified but not yet effective

The new and amended standards and interpretations that are issued, but not yet effective, up to the date
of issuance of the Company’s standalone financial statements are disclosed below. The Company will

adopt this new and amended standard, when it become effective:

Lack of exchangeability Amendments to Ind AS 21

The Ministry of Corporate Atfairs notitied amendments to Ind AS 21 The Ettects of Changes in
Foreign Exchange Rates to specify how an entity should assess whether a currency is exchangeable and
how it should determine a spot exchange rate when exchangeability is lacking. The amendments also
require disclosure of information that enables users of its financial statements to understand how the
currency not being exchangeable mnto the other currency affects, or is expected to affect, the entity’s
financial performance, financial position and cash flows.

The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 April 2025. When
applying the amendments, an entity cannot restate comparative information.

The amendments are not expected to have a material impact on the Company’s financial statements.

Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the
accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying

amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.

Judgements
In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, management has made the following
judgements, which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial

statements:

Revenue from contracts with customers
The Company applied the following judgements that significantly affect the determination of the

amount and timing of revenue from contracts with customers:

Determining method to estimate variable consideration and assessing the constraint

Certain contracts for the sale of goods include a right of return that give rise to variable consideration.
In estimating the variable consideration, the Company is required to use either the expected value
method or the most likely amount method based on which method better predicts the amount of

consideration to which it will be entitled.

The Company determined that the expected value method is the appropriate method to use in
estimating the variable consideration for the sale of goods with rights of return, given the large number

of customer contracts that have similar characteristics.
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Before including any amount of variable consideration in the transaction price, the Company considers
whether the amount of variable consideration is constrained. The Company determined that the
estimates of variable consideration are not constrained based on its historical experience, business
forecast and the current economic conditions. In addition, the uncertainty on the variable consideration

will be resolved within a short time frame.

Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and labilities within the next financial year, are described below. The Company based its
assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial statements were prepared.
Eixisting circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to
market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are

reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

Share-based payments

The Company measures the cost of equity-settled transactions with employees using a Black Scholes
Options Pricing model to determine the fair value of the liability incurred. Estimating fair value for
share-based payment transactions requires determination of the most appropriate valuation model,
which is dependent on the terms and conditions of the grant. This estimate also requires determination
of the most appropriate inputs to the valuation model including the expected life of the share option,
volatility and dividend yield and making assumptions about them. The assumptions and models used
for estimating fair value for share-based payment transactions are disclosed in note 47.

Defined benefit plans (gratuity benefits)

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and the present value of the gratuity obligation are
determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that
may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount
rate; future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and
its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All

assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate
for plans operated, the management considers the interest rates of government bonds in currencies

consistent with the currencies of the defined benefit obligation.
The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables for the country. Those mortality tables
tend to change only at interval in response to demographic changes. Future salary increases and gratuity

increases are based on expected future inflation rates for the country.

Further details about gratuity obligations are given in note 42.




PICL (India) Private Limited
CIN: U74899HR1994PTCI113718
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

Fair value measurement of financial instruments

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be
measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation
techniques including the DCF model. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets
where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in establishing fair
values. Judgements include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility.
Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments.

See Note 43 and 44 for further disclosures.

Revenue recognition - Estimating variable consideration for returns

The Company estimates variable considerations to be included in the transaction price for the sale of
goods with rights of return. The Company developed a statistical model for forecasting sales returns.
The model used the historical return data of each product to come up with expected return percentages.
These percentages are applied to determine the expected value of the variable consideration. Any
significant changes in experience as compared to historical return pattern will impact the expected

return percentages estimated by the Company.

The Company updates its assessment of expected returns quarterly and the refund liabilities are adjusted
accordingly. Estimates of expected returns are sensitive to changes in circumstances and the Company’s
past experience regarding returns entitlements may not be representative of customers’ actual returns
in the future.

Provision for expected credit losses of trade receivables

The Company uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade receivables. The provision rates are
based on days past due for groupings of various customer segments that have similar loss patterns (i.c.,
by geography, product type, customer type and rating, and coverage by letters of credit and other forms

of credit insurance).

The provision matrix is initially based on the Company’s historical observed default rates. The Company
will calibrate the matrix to adjust the historical credit loss experience with forward-looking information.
For instance, if forecast economic conditions (i.e., gross domestic product) are expected to deteriorate
over the next year which can lead to an increased number of defaults in the manufacturing sector, the
historical default rates are adjusted. At every reporting date, the historical observed default rates are
updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates are analysed.

The assessment of the correlation between historical observed default rates, forecast economic
conditions and ECLs is a significant estimate. The amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes in
circumstances and of forecast economic conditions. The Company’s historical credit loss experience
and forecast of economic conditions may also not be representative of customer’s actual default in the
future. The information about the ECLs on the Company’s trade receivables is disclosed in note 44.
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Impairment of non-financial assets

Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable
amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The fair value less
costs of disposal calculation is based on available data from binding sales transactions, conducted at
arm’s length, for similar assets or observable market prices less incremental costs for disposing of the
asset. The value in use calculation is based on a DCF model. The cash flows are derived from the budget
for the next five years and do not include restructuring activities that the Company is not yet committed
to or significant future investments that will enhance the asset’s performance of the CGU being tested.
‘The recoverable amount is sensitive to the discount rate used for the DCF model as well as the expected

future cash-inflows and the growth rate used for extrapolation purposes.

Intangible asset under development

The Company capitalises intangible asset under development for a project in accordance with the
accounting policy. Initial capitalisation of costs is based on management’s judgement that technological
and economic feasibility is confirmed, usually when a product development project has reached a
defined milestone according to an established project management model. In determining the amounts
to be capitalised, management makes assumptions regarding the expected future cash generation of the

project and the expected period of benefits.

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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4. Property, plant and equipment

Cost Land Buildings Plam.‘md S Ofﬁcc Vehicles  Computers Total
machinery fixtures equipment
Gross Block
As at 1 April 2023 1,771.68 6,666.13 6,064.95 175.83 109.86 1.33 283.09 15,072.87
Additions - 149,44 2,099.64 7.67 48.06 - 16.73 2,321.54
Disposals - - (2.90) - = - - (2.90)
As at 31 March 2024 1,771.68 6,815.57 8,161.69 183.50 157.92 1.33 299.82 17,391.51
Additions 5 61.29 1,626.07 30.09 44.63 - 36.65 1,798.73
Disposals 2 e S o 3 2 & R
As at 31 March 2025 1,771.68 6,876.86 9,787.76 213.59 202.55 1.33 336.47 19,190.24
Accumulated depreciation
As at 1 April 2023 - 152.30 2,150.11 45.12 28.26 0.15 132.93 2,508.87
Charge for the year - 213.95 511.05 16.05 13.23 0.16 67.30 821.74
Disposals - - (0.07) - - % z (0.07)
As at 31 March 2024 - 366.25 2,661.09 61.17 41.49 0.31 200.23 3,330.54
Charge for the year - 216.40 623.78 16.06 18.38 0.16 G410 938.88
Disposals - - - - - - - &
As at 31 March 2025 - 582.65 3,284.87 77.23 59.87 0.47 264.33 4,269.42
Net block as at 31 March 2024 1,771.68 6,449.32 5,500.60 122,33 116.43 1.02 99.59 14,060.97
Net block as at 31 March 2025 1,771.68 6,294.21 6,502.89 136.36 142.68 0.86 72.14 14,920.82

(i) Contractual obligations
Refer note 36(it) for disclosure of contractual commitments for the acquisition of property, plant and equipment.

(1) Title deeds of all immovable properties are held in the name of the Company.

(111) On transition to Ind AS (i.c. 01 April 2016), the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all Property, plant and equipment measured as per the

previous GAAP and use that carrying value as the deemed cost of Property, plant and equipment.

As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
5. Capital work-in-progress
Plant and machinerics under installation 1,756.92 611.03

1,756.92 611.03
Notes:
(i) Movement in capital work in progress:
Particulars Amount
Capital work-in-progress as at 01 April 2023 195.02
Add: additions during the year 1,227.53
Less: capitalisation during the year (811.52)
Capital work-in-progress as at 31 March 2024 611.03
Add: additions during the year 1,708.93
Less: capitalisation during the year (563.04)
Capital work-in-progress as at 31 March 2025 1,756.92
(ii) Ageing schedule of capital work-in-progress:
31 March 2025 Less than 1 1-2 years 2-3 years | More than 3 Total

year years
Plant and machineries under mstallaton 1,708.93 7.70 40,29 - 1,756.92
Total 1,708.93 7.70 40.29 - 1,756.92
31 March 2024 Less than 1 1-2 years 2-3 years | More than 3 Total
year years

Plant and machinerics under installation 570.74 40.29 - - 611.03
Total 570.74 40.29 - - 611.03

Capital work in progress (CWIP) as at 31 March 2025 and as at 31 March 2024 comprises expenditure for the plant and machinerics in the course of installation.

‘There are no projects that are temporarily suspended. Further, there are no projects whose completion is overdue or has exceeded its cost compared to its original plan.
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6. Intangible assets

Coat Software's Patent and Development Total intangible
trademark COsts assets

Gross block

As at 1 April 2023 254.62 30.00 1,923.06 2,207.68
Addinons = = 786.03 786.03
As at 31 March 2024 254.62 30.00 2,709.09 2,993.71
Addinons 22,40 - 580.93 603.33
As at 31 March 2025 277.02 30.00 3,290.02 3,597.04
Accumulated amortisation

As at 1 April 2023 166.05 30.00 1,000.65 1,196.70
Charge for the year 19.80) - 248.67 268.47
As at 31 March 2024 185.85 30.00 1,249.32 1,465.17
Charge for the year 19.57 - 320.66 340.23
As at 31 March 2025 205.42 30.00 1,569.98 1,805.40
Net block as at 31 March 2024 68.77 - 1,459.77 1,528.54
Net block as at 31 March 2025 71.60 - 1,720.04 1,791.64

(1) Intangible assets as at 31 March 2025 and as at 31 March 2024 comprises of software's, patent and trademark and product development charges.

(1) On transition to Ind AS (Le. 1 April 2016), the Company has clected to continue with the carrying value of all Intangible assets measured as per the previous

GAAP and use that carrying value as the deemed cost of Intangible assets.

7. Intangible assets under development

As at
31 March 2025

As at
31 March 2024

Intangible assets under development 974.97 700.97
974.97 700.97
Notes:
(i) Movement in intangible assets under development:
Particulars Amount
Intangible assets under development as at 31 March 2023 754.40
Add: additions during the year 839.74
Less: capitalisation during the year (7806.03)
Less: loss on account of unapproved product development (107.14)
Intangible assets under development as at 31 March 2024 700.97
Add: additions during the year 9006.75
Less: capitalisation during the year (580.93)
Less: loss on account of unapproved product development (51.82)
974.97

Intangible assets under development as at 31 March 2025

(i) During the year, expenses aggregating to INR 906.75 lakh (31 March 2024: INR 839.74 lakh), nct off scrap income have been capitalised under intangible assets
under development. The aforesaid expenses comprises of raw material consumption, personnel costs, power and fuel charges and other related expenses.

For the year ended

For the year ended

Particul
Lal 31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Purchase 48.20 57.23
Limployee benefit expense 596.84 462.64
Job work charges 10.60 1.43
T'ravelling and conveyance expense 15.19 61.34
Miscellancous expenses 235.92 257.10
Total 906.75 839.74
(iii) Intangible assets under development aging schedule:
31 March 2025 Amount in Intangible assets under development for a period of

. Total
Particulars Les;:::n 1 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years
Product development in progress 500.53 373.89 64.55 30.00 974.97
31 March 2024 Amount in Intangible assets under development for a period of

Total

Particulars Les;;:?n A 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years o«
Product development n progress 549.40 121.57 30.00 -

(iv) There are no projects that are temporanly suspended. Further, there are no projects whose completion is overdue or has exceeded its

Ol’l.;_‘;il{.'ll plan.

i Intinmble aszers unde ‘ Onment

relate to the various projects undertaken by the Company.
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As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
8 Other financial assets (non-current unsecured, considered good)
Secunt deposits 3229 Ix3
3229 3121

Refer note 43 - Far value disclosures for disclosure of far value i respect of furancul assers measured at amornsed costand note H - Financial nsk management for assessment of expected credir losses

9 Income tax assets (net)
Income rax assets (net) 13783 18997
137.83 189.97
10 Other non-current assets (unsecured, considered good)
Capiral advances 20837 403,39
Prepad expenses 1.80 368
B0 7.7
11 Inventories
(Valued art lower of cost and net realisable value, unless otherwise stated)
Raw marcrials
=i hand 1422061 143820
-~ reansit 46415 123.69
Intermedhiate products LiMT.63 807.59
Fimshed goods
n hand 419.93 16095
- in mransit 2923 %
Stores, sparcs and other consumuables 285 1.83
Packing marenals 2604 1212
3,403.04 2,544.38
During the vear ended 31 March 2025, INR Nil lakh (31 March 2024: INR Nil Likh) was recogmsed as an expense for inventories carried ar ner realisable value.
12 Trade receivables
Trade recewvables 514309
Recewvables from related parties (refer nore 37) 47607
561976 61t
Break-up for security details:
Trade receivables
Unsecured, considered good 361976 6,146.14
Trade Receivables - credit impaired 1348 1348
5,633.24 6,159.62
Impairment Allowance (allowance for bad and doubtful debis)
Trade Recewables - credit wnpared (13.48) (1348)
5,619.76 6,146.14
Notes:
(1) Refer note M - Funancual nsk management for assessment of expecred credit losses.

(i) No trade or other receivable are due from dicectors or other officers of the Company either severally or jointhy with any other person. Nor any trade or other recevable are due from firms or private companies
respectively m which any director is a partner, a dircctor or a member other than those mentioned m note 37.

(m) For terms and conditions relating to related party recenvables, refer note 37

{iv) Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on terms of 7 days to %0 days.

(¥) Ageing schedule of trade receivables:

31 March 2025 Current but Outstanding from the due date of payment Toral
not due Less than 6 | 6 months -1 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years
months year
Undisputed trade receivables — considered good 4181.24 2724 10.38 074 016 - 5,619.76
Ly uted Trade R ables — credit inpaired z - - - - 1348 13.48
Total 4,181.24 1,427.24 10.38 0.74 0.16 13.48 5,633.24
31 March 2024 Current but O ding from the due date of payment Total
not due Less than 6 | 6 months -1 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years
months year
Undi d rrade receivables — rdered pood 466777 1.386.45 26.15 4021 8.89 10.67 6,146.14
Undisputed Trade Receivables — credit impaired - - = = - 1348 13.48
Total 4,667.77 1,386.45 26.15 46.21 8.89 24.15 6,159.62
13 Cash and cash equivalents
Balances with banks:
- in current and cash ceedir accounts 1810025 181881
1,810.25 1,818.81
14 Other bank balances
Deposits with original maturity more than three months but less than rwelve months [refer note (i)] 6.24 -
6.24 =
Notes:
(1) Bank deposits which are under restriction:
Fixed deposits lodged with Govemment authonitics for subsidy under SPECS scheme 6.24
A Loans (current)
Unsecured, considered good
Loans to employees 9247 -
9.47 -
==

The Company does not have any loans which are cither credit impaired or where theee is significant increase in eredit risk.

Loans are non-dervanive financial assets which generate 1 fixed or variable mterest income for the Company and are measured at amortised cost. The carrying value may be affected by changes in the credir risk

of the counterpartics.

15 Other financial assets (current) (unsecured, considered good)

Security deposits 107 9.06

Govermment grant recenvable 219.15 -

Other recewvable 0.76 -
230.98 9.06

Refer note 43 - Fair value disclosures for disclosure of fair value in respect of financial asscrs measured at amormised cost and note 44 - Financul ask management for assessment of expected ceedit losses.

16 Other current assets (unsecured, considered good)

Advances to suppliers nn 3266
Balances wath stamutory authonties Pr“ v 24730 30219
Advances to employees .\na,\ Q 2 1842 18.20
Prepaid expenses o) Q 23000 7937
£ =\ 5939 43242
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As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
17 Equity share capital
Authorised share capital
3.000,000 (31 March 2023 3000000} Equty shares of INR 10 cach 0000 S
500.00 500.00
Issued, subscribed capital and fully paid up
3,642,100 (31 March 2024: 3,642, 100) Egquaty shares of INR 10 cach 3o4.21 364.21
364.21 364.21

(i) Terms/rights attached to equity shares
e Company has only one chiss of cquity shares having a par value of INR 10 cach. Iach holder of equiry shace is entitled to one vote per share. Tn the event of
liquidarion of the Company, holders of cquity shares will be entitled to recewe any of the remammg assets of the Company, aftee distribution of all preferential amounts.,
The distrbution wall be i proportion to the number of equity shares held by the sharcholders.

(ii) Reconcilintion of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
No. of shares (INR lakh) No. of shares (INR lakh)
Equity share capital of INR 10 each fully paid up
Balance ar the begmmmg of the year 36,42,100 304,21 30,42, 1000 36421
Balance at the end of the year 36,42,100 364.21 36,42,100 364.21
(iii) Shareholders holding more than 5% of shares of the Company as at balance sheet date
31 March 2025 As on 31 March 2024
No. of shares %o holding No. of shares % holding
\mber Enterprises Incdia Limited 36,42,000 99.997% 36,42,000 99.997%
(iv) Shares held by holding company:
Out of equity shares issued by the Company, shares held by us Holding Company are as below:
31 March 2025 As on 31 March 2024
No. of shares %o holding No. of shares Y holding
Amber Enterprises India Limired 36,42,000 99.997% 36,42,000 99.997%,
v) Deuails of promoter shareholding
Name of promoter 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Number of % of total % change during ~ Number of % of total shares 4 change during
shares shares the period shares the period
Amber Enterprises India Linated 36,42,000 99.997% - 36,42,000 99.997%

vi) Noequity shares had been issued as bonus, for consideration other than cash and bought back dunng the penod of five years immediately preceding the reporting date.

18 Other equity As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

General reserve
Balance at the beginning and end of the year 54.48 54.48

Securities premium
Balance at the beginning and end of the year 0.05 0.05

Employee stock option outstanding Account

Balance at the beginning of the year 177.33 104.29
Add: Share based payment expenses (refer note 47) 41.35 T304
Less: Lixercise of share options (refer note 47) (13.73) -

Balance at the end of the year 204.96 177.33

Capital contribution from Holding Company 13.72 -

Retained earnings

Balance at the beginning of the year +569.71 3,858.97

Add : Profit for the year 18744 T14.81
Add : Other comprehensive (loss):

Remeasurement of defined benefit obligations (net of rax) (3.93) (+07)

Balance at the end of the vear 6,439.82 4,569.71

‘Total other equity 6,713.03 4,801.57

Nature and purpose of other equity

General reserve

Under the erstwhile Companies Act 1956, general reserve was created through an annual transfer of net income at a specified pereentage i accordance with apphicable
regulations. The purpose of these transfers was to ensure that if a dividend distabution m a given year is more than 1076 of the paid-up capital of the Company for that year,
then the total dividend distribution is less than the total distributable results for that year. Consequent to mtroduction of Companies Act 2013, the requirement to mandatorily
transfer a specified percentage of the net profit to general reserve has been withdrawn. However, the amount previously transterred to the general reserve can be utilised only in
accordance with the specific requirements of Compamies Act, 2013,

Securities premium
Sccuritics premium represents premium received on issue of shares. The secunties premim s utilised in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act.

Employee stock option outstanding account
The Employee stock options outstanding account is used to recognise the geant date fair value of options issued to cmployees under Employee Stock Option Plan 2017 issued

by Amber Enterprises India Limited, the Holding Company.

Capital contribution from Holding Company

It represents amount of Holding Company's equity scttled employees stock options exercised by employees of the Company.

Retained earnings

'rve, dividends or other distnbu

tatement of Peafit and |oss

less any transters to general res
1axes that will ot be cecla

Surplus in the statement of profit and loss are the profits that the Company has camed ull da

shaseholdess, Retas

i earnings achude re-measurement (lossl/ i on defined tplans ael
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(i)

As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Non-current borrowings
Secured

Term loan from banks [refer note (1)(a) to ()(f)] 4,971.22 5,671.03

Unsecured

Loan from related partics [refer note 37 and (1)(g) below| 2,562.910 2,886.91
7,534.12 8,557.93

Notes:

Repayment terms and security disclosure for non-current borrowings (including current maturities) outstanding as at 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024

Term loan from RBL Bank Limited amounting to INR 2,388.84 lakh (including current matunities of INR 637.02 lakh) {31 March 2024 INR 3,022.73 lakh (including current matunities of INR 637.02
lakh)} carrving interest rate @ 7.65"0 paa. (31 March 2024: 7.90% p.a) is remaining repavable in 15 quarterly instalments with last instalment payable in October 2028.

Term loan from Axis Bank Limited amounting to INR 2,265.33 lakh (including current maturities of INR 1,0017.68 lakh) {31 March 2024: INR 3,305.14 lakh (including current matunties of INR
1037.86 lakh)} carrying interest rate @ 8.25" 0 p.a. (31 March 2024 825" p.a) is remaining repayable in 9 quarterly instalments with last instalment payable in June 2027.

Working Capital Term loan (GECL) from RBL Bank Limited amounting to INR Nil lakh (including current maturities of INR Nil lakh) {31 March 2024: INR 216.67 lakh (including current maturitics
of INR 216.67 lakh} carrying interest rate Nil (31 March 2024: 9.25% p.a.) is fully paid on 3 July 2024,

Term loan from Shinhan Bank Limited amounting to INR 1,621.27 lakh (including current maturitics of INR 360.29 lakh) {31 March 2024: INR 1,131.14 lakh (including current maturities of INR
113,10 lakh} cacrying nterest rate @ 8.20%0 paa. to 8.45" p.a. (31 March 2024: 8.45%0 p.a.) 1s remaining repayable in 18 quarterly mstalments with last instalment payable in September 2029,

Term loan from HDIFC Bank Limited amounting to INR 800.88 lakh (including current maturities of INR 100,11 lakh) {31 March 2024: INR Nil lakh (including current marturities of INR Nil lakh]
carrying iterest rate @ 7.88"0 p.a (31 March 20242 Nil) 1s remaining repayable in 24 quarterly instalments with last instalment payable in May 2031,

Details of securities:-

As at 31 March 2025, above loans are secured by first pan pasu charge on all the present and future current assets of the Company, first pari passu charge on moveable property of the Company
(excluding those which are exclusively hypothecated with other Banks/Financial Institutions), first pari passu charge on immovable property, plant and equipment - Plot No.-619, Sector-69, IMT,
FFandabad 1n the name of the Company . The above loans are also secured by corporate guarantees of Amber Enterprises India Limited (Holding Company).

As at 31 March 2024, above loans (except GECL) are secured by first pari pasu charge on all the present and future current assets of the Company, first pari passu charge on moveable property of the
Company (excluding those which are exclusively hypothecated with other Banks/Financial Institutions), first pan passu charge on immovable property, plant and equipment - Plot No.-619, Sector-69,
IMT, Fandabad in the name of the Company . The above loans are also secured by corporate guarantees of Amber Enterprises India Limited (Holding Company).

GIECL Loan are secured by second pari pasu charge on all the present and future current assets of the Company, sccond pari passu charge on moveable property of the Company (excluding those
which arc exclusively hypothecated with other Banks/IFinancial Institutions), second pari passu charge on immovable property, plant and equipment - Plot No.-619, Sccror-69, IMT, Faridabad in the

name of the Company.

Unsccured loan from Amber Enterprises India Limited (Holding Company) amounting to INR 2,562.90 lakh (31 March 2024: INR 2,886.90 lakh) carrying interest rate @ 9.00"0 p.a. (31 March 2024:
9.00%0 p.a.) is repayable at the end of 7 years from the date of first disbursement.

Refer note 43 - e value disclosures for disclosure of fair value in respect of financial liabiities measured at amortised cost and note 44 - for the matunty profile of financial liabilities

(iif) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities

Non-current Current
borrowings borrowings*
(including current Total
maturities)
As at 01 April 2023 8,058.39 1,000.00 9,058.39
Cash flows:

Proceeds from be TOWINgS 6,428.64 - 6,428.64

Repayment of borrowings (3,927.58) (922.21) . (4,849.79)
Non-cash:

Impact of borrowings measured at amortised cost 3.13 - 313
As at 31 March 2024 10,562.58 77.79 10,640.37
Cash flows:

Proceeds from borrowings 1,458.38 - 1,458.38

Repayment of borrowings (2,382.78) (77.79) (2,460.57)
Non-cash:

1.04 - L.04

Impact of borrowings measured at amortised cost

As at 31 March 2025 9,639.22 - 9,639.22

*proceeds from borrowing is on net basis

(iv) Term loans were applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained.

™)

The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender.

(vi) There have been no breaches in the financial covenants of any interest-bearing loans and borrowing in the current period.

20

Provisions (non-current)
Provision for employee benefits

Gratuity 112.82 107.69
Compensated absences 54.18 42.70
167.00 150.39

For disclosures related to provision for employee benefits, refer note 42 - Employee benefit obligatons.
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Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(All amounts in INR in lakh unless otherwise stated)

As at

31 March 2025

As at

31 March 2024

20A  Government grants

At 1 April
Recerved during the year

219.14
(1.76)

Released to the statement of profit and loss
At 31 March

218.38

Current
Non-current

19.92
198.46

218.38

Government grants have been received for the purchase of certain items of property, plant and cquipment. There are no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies attached to these grants.

21 Deferred tax liabilities (net)
Deferred tax liability arising on account of :

Property, plant and cquipment impact of difference between  tax depreciation  and 4 i
e S ) 613.40 437.67
depreciation/amortisation charged for the financial reporting
Deferred tax asset arising on account of :
Expenses allowable in Income tax on payment basis and deposition of Statutory dues 70.43 101.64
Impairment for trade receivables 3.39 3.39
Financial assets and liabilities measured ar amortised cost 0.30 0.16
74.12 105.19
Net deferred tax liabilities 539.28 332.48
Notes:
(i) Movement in deferred tax liabilities
Particulars aar Reszfl i:::ci:ls;t: “ l:f:tl:eﬁln:iidoi'“ As at
01 April 2024 'P 31 March 2025
income profit and loss
Liabilities
Property » plant mdrup.ppmmt impact ofdlﬁluﬂg between tax depreciation and $7.67 i 175.73 61340
depreciation/amortisation charged for the financial reporting
437.67 - 175.73 613.40
Assets
Iixpenses allowable in Income tax on payment basis and deposition of Statutory ducs 101.64 1.32 (32.53) 70.43
Impairment for trade receivables 339 & 3.39
Financial assets and liabilities measured at amortised cost 0.16 - 0.14 0.30
105.19 1.32 (32.39) 74.12
Deferred tax liabilities (net) 332.48 (1.32) 208.12 539.28
(ii) Movement in deferred tax liabilities
Particulars Asat Reculf:n Is:lllielx:ls;::ft: - I:f:;?:;:?i;_" Agar
01 April2023  O™P 31 March 2024
income profit and loss
Liabilities
I roperty, plant and .l.l.llflpml.n'( impact nfdifﬁ.rm‘ct betw een tax depreciation and 5 266.22 17145 43767
depreciation/amortisation charged for the financial reporting
266.22 - 171.45 437.67
Assets
Expenses allowable in Income tax on payment basis and deposition of Statutory dues 44.84 1.37 55.43 101.64
Impairment for trade recervables 339 - B0
Financial assers and liabilities measured at amortised cost 0.16 = 5 0.16
48.39 1.37 55.43 105.19
Deferred tax liabilities (net) 217.83 (1.37) 116.02 332.48

(This space bas been tntentionally lft blank)
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Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(All amounts in INR in lakh unless otherwise stated)

Current borrowings
Secured
From banks:
Cash credits
Current maturities of non-current borrowings:
Term loan [also refer note 19(1)(a) to 19(1)()]
from banks

Terms of repayment for current borrowings other than current maturities of non-current borrowings:
(a) Repayment terms and security disclosure for current borrowings other than current maturities of non-current borrowings outstanding as at 31 March 2024:
Cash Credit Facilities (repayable on demand) are secured by first pari pasu charge on all the present and future current assets of the Company, first pari passu charge on moveable property, plant and
cquipment of the Company (excluding those which are exclusively hypothecated with other Banks/Finanenal Institutions), fiest pan passu charge on immovable property - Plot No.-619, Sector-69,
IMT, Faridabad in the name of the Company. Cash Credit facilitics (repayable on demand) are sceured by corporate guarantees of Amber Enterprises India Limited (Holding Company). These facilitics

carry interest rate of 9.45"0 p.a.

As at
31 March 2025

As at
31 March 2024

2,105 10

77.79

2,004.65

2,105.10

2,082.44

(b) The Company has borrowings from banks on the basis of sccunty of current assets and quarterly returns or statements of current asscts filed by the Company with banks are in agreement with the

books of accounts.

23 Trade payables

“total outstanding dues of micro enterpnses and small enterprses [refer note (1) for details of dues to micro and small enterprises|

-total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises®

Trade payables

179.59 453.15
12,438.22 10,714.45
12,617.81 11,167.60

12,176.20

10,853.80

Trade payables to related parties (also refer note 37) 441.01 313.71
12,617.81 11,167.60
“includes acceptances arrangements where operational supplicrs of goods and services are initially paid by banks/financial institutions where there 1s no recourse on the company.
Ageing schedule of trade payables:
31 March 2025 Current but not Outstanding from the due date of payment Total
due Less than 1year|  1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years
‘T'otal outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 136.16 43.43 - - 179.59
Total outstanding ducs of creditors other than micro enterprises and small 6,561.87 5,875.53 1.48 0.31 (.03 12,438.22
enterprises
Total 6,697.03 5,918.96 1.48 0.31 0.03 12,617.81
31 Murch 2024 Current but not Oustunding from the due date ol payment Toral
due Less than 1 year|  1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 360.31 80.84 - - - 453.15
‘Total outstanding ducs of creditors other than micro enterprises and small 8,925.46 1,785.98 208 .40 .53 10,714.45
enterprises
Total 9,291.77 1,872.82 2.08 0.40 0.53 11,167.60
(1) Disclosures pursuant to section 22 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006
The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of each accounting year
Prncipal amount due to micro and small enterprises 179.59 440.23
Interest due on above 19.66 12,92
‘The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the MSMED Act 2006 along with the amounts of the payment
made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting year
The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have been paid but beyond the
appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under the MSMED Act 2006 ) )
19.66 1292

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of cach accounting year

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues as
above are actually paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the

MSMED Act 2006

Terms and conditions of the above financial liabilities:

(i)

Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are generally on terms of 7 to 120 days.

FFor terms and conditions with related parties, refer note 37.

IFor explanatons on the Company’s credit nsk management processes, refer note 44.
) &
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Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(All amounts in INR in lakh unless otherwise stated)

As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

24 Other financial liabilities (Current)

Interest accrued but not due on borrowng (also refer note 37) 3165 58.42
FForeign exchange forward contracts (Derivative instruments at fair value through profit or loss) [refer note (1)) 1540 -
Payables for capital goods (also refer note 37) 483.67 613.81
Lixpenses payables 108.49 87.18
Limployee related payables (also refer note 37) 256.42 188.96
895.63 948.37

Notes:
(1) Dervanve mstruments at fair value through profit or loss relates o foreign exchange forward contracts that are not designated in hedge relationships, but are, nevertheless, intended to reduce the

level of forcign currency rsk for expected sales and purchases.

25 Other current liabilities

Advance from customers (contract liabilities) 183.00 29.25
Payable to statutory authonties 173.17 34.16
356.17 63.41
26 Provisions (current)
Provision for employee benefits
Gratuiry 9.42 8.93
Compensated absences 3.58 3.24
13.00 12.17
For disclosures related to provision for emplovee benefits, refer note 42 - Employee benefit obligations.
26A  Government grants (current)
Deferred Government grant (refer note 20A) 19.92 -
19.92 -

(This space bas been intentionally left blank)
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27

28

29

30

31

32

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Revenue from operations
Revenue from Contracts with Customers (refer note 46)
Sale of products 45,641.15 31,980.17
Other operating revenues
Scrap sales 2,548.58 1,826.77
Government grant income (also refer note 20) 0.76 -
lixport incentive 48.30 69.83
48,238.79 33,876.77

Government grant income represents grant recognised for other state incentives. There are no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies attached to these grants.

Other income

Interest income on:

Bank deposits 0.27 24,16
Other non-operating income:
Foreign exchange fluctuation (net) 111.09 97.12
Liabilitics no longer required written back 7.04 28.18
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment (ner) - 0.07
Insurance claims 2.04 -
Miscellancous income 7.88 2.27
128.32 151.80
Cost of raw materials consumed
Inventory at the beginning of the year 1,575.84 1,616.22
Add: Purchases made during the year 34,157.94 24,168.81
Less: Inventory at the end of the year 1,916.25 1,575.84
33,817.53 24,209.19
Changes in inventories of intermediate products and finished goods
Opening stock
Intermediate products 807.59 8306.50
Finished goods 160.95 238.09
968.54 1,074.59
Closing stock
Intermediate products 1,047.63 807.59
Finished goods 439.16 160.95
1,486.79 968.54
(518.25) 106.05
Employee benefits expense
Salary, wages and bonus 1,217.36 977.66
Contribution to provident and other funds (refer note 42) 50.52 44.48
Gratuity expense (refer note 42) 33.03 26.70
Staff welfare expenses 59.69 35.96
Share based expenses (refer note 47) 41.35 73.04
1,401.95 1,157.84

The Code on Social Security, 2020 (‘Code’) relating to employee benefits during employment and post employment benefits received Presidential assent in
September 2020. The Code has been published in the Gazette of India. Certain sections of the Code came into cffect on 3 May 2023, However, the final
rules/interpretation have not yet been issued. Based on a preliminary assessment, the entity believes the impact of the change will not be significant.

Finance costs

Interest on:

- debt and borrowing 9 N 1,014.93
- others . 52.64
Oither horrowing costs : 355,17

g e Ea
R Taden
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33 Depreciation and amortisation expense

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (refer note 4)

Amortsation of intangible asscts (refer note 6)

34 Other expenses
Job work charges
Contractual labour charges
Power and fuel charges
I'reight outward
Legal and professional charges [refer note (i)
Travelling and conveyance expense
Repairs and maintenance
- Plant and machinery
- Buildings
- Others
Insurance
Rent (refer note 41)
- Plant and machinery
- Buildings
- others
Rates and taxces
Donation
Corporate social responsibility expenses (refer note 48)
Advances and other balances written off
Bad debrs
Loss on account of unapproved product development
Security charges
Ifair value loss on financials instruments through profit and loss [refer note 24(i))
Miscellaneous expenses

i) Payments to the auditor:

As auditor:
Audi fee
Limited review

In other capacity:
Other services (certification fees)
Reimbursement of expenses

Total

(This space has been intentionally left blank)

For the year ended
31 March 2025

For the year ended
31 March 2024

938.88 821.74
340.23 268.47
1,279.11 1,090.21
1,352.74 906.07
2,493.01 1,754.16
337.51 265.38
642.24 427.99
357.09 205.33
74.65 56,66
167.87 114.05
46.60 14.36
168.58 135.32
28.92 28.92
0.74 1.67
- 1.51
0.15 0.19
8.82 7.26
- 0.05
28.50 18.00
0.07 .
18.08 5
51.82 107.14
22.84 44.76
15.40 :
231.01 165.42
6,046.64 4,254.24
14.00 9.50
3.00 3.00
0.50 -
1.37 112
18.87 13.62
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35

36

(i)

0]

(i)

(ii)

Earnings per share (EPS)

Basic [2PS amounts are caleulated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equityholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year, Diluted
1iPS amounts are caleulated by dividing the profit atributable to equityholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted average

number of equity shares that would be issued on conversion of all the potenual dilutive equity shares into equity shares.

The following reflects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations:

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company: 1,874.04 714.81
Number of weighted average equity shares (Nominal value of INR 10 each)
- Basic 36,42,100 36,42,100
- Diluted 36,42,100 36,42,100
Earnings per share- after tax
- Basic 5145 19.63
- Diluted 51.45 19.63
The Company does not have any outstanding dilutive potential instruments as on 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024
Contingent liabilities and commitments
As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Contingent liabilities #
Demands/Claims from Government authorities
a) Income tax demands
Assessment Year- 2018-19 [refer note (1)) 0.79 0.79
Other claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts
9.78 9.78

b)  Bonus for financial year 2014-15 [refer note (it)|

Demand was raised by the Income-tax department for the assessment year 2018-19 on 09 April 2021, for additional income-tax payable by the Company . The Company has filed an
appeal to the CIT (Appeals), Delhi regarding the same on 06 May 2021.

The Payment of Bonus (Amendment) Act, 2015 dated 31 December 2015 (which was made cffective from 01 April 2014) revised the thresholds for coverage of employee cligible for
Bonus and also enhanced the caling limits for computation of bonus. However, taking cognizance of the stay granted by various High Courts and based on legal opinion obtained by the
management, the Company has not recognised any differential amount of bonus for the period 01 April 2014 to 31 March 2015 (INR 9.78 lakh) and accordingly has recognised the

expense as per the amended provisions w.e.f. 01 April 2015 and onwards.

The Company 1s subject to legal proceedings and claims, which have arisen in the ordinary course of business. Based on discussions with the solicitors /favourable decisions in similar
cases/legal opintons taken by the Company, the management does not expect these claims to succeed and henee, no provision there against is considered neeessary.

Commitments
As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account not provided for (net of advances) for acquisition of 57916 750,50
Property, plant and equipment - 2
572.16 759.50

(This space has been left blank intentionally)
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37 Related party disclosures

In accordance with the requirements of Ind A3 24 Related Party Disclosures, names of the related parties, related pasty selanonshp, reansacnons and ourstanding balances meluding commirmenrs

where control cars and with whom rransacnons have taken place dunng reported penods are:

A.  Relationship with related parties

I. Holding Company Amber Enterpnses Indu Linuted
II. Entities over which significant influence is exercised by the 1L JIN Electronics (India) Private Limired
Company/key management personnel Sidwal Refrigeranon Industnes Pavate Limited

Amber Enrerprises USA Ine
NRV Designx Private Limured
Pravartaka Tooling Seraices Pavare Limited

-

[r. Daljr Singh (Dhrcector)

Mr Jasbir Singh (Director) (Ceasedd as director we £ 3 Angnsr 2024)
cd week 16 May 2024)

3 August 2024)

1II. Key management personnel (KMP)

-

Is. Amandeep Kaur (Direcror) (Ce
Mr. [arpreer Sukhuja (Director) (W
Ms. Divya (Compar rerary) (from 1 February 2023 to 10 June 2023;

Ms. Indu Verma

mpany Secretary) (Weel. 1 August 2023)

The following transactions were carried out with related parties in the ordinary course of business for the year ended 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024:

Entities over which significant

o R K
I\TL Particulars Hokling Compauy influence is exercised ey mRgagement pergonel
0.
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 | 31 March 2025 | 31 March 2024 | 31 March 2025 | 31 March 2024
(A) |Transactions made during the year:

a) |Legal and professional charges
Amber Enrerp India Limired 269.75 136.57 -

b) [Reimbursement of expenses incurred
terpnises India Limited 39.90 - - - -
Tooling Sevaces Pavare Limired - - 063 - -

Amber E

Pravarta

c) |Sale of products

Amber Enterprises India Lited 12,376.09 7,359.87 - - -
1L JIN Electeonics (India) Private Limited - - 268.83 B445 - =
Sudwal Retengeration Industnes Prvate Linuted - 3 7.91 298 - =

d) |Purchase of raw material

Amber Enrerprses Indi Linmited 70,95 160.85 - = =
1L JIN Electromes (Indi) Prvate Linured - - 803.09 11244 - -
Sidwal Referigeration Industries Prvate Limited - 3 = 245 ,
Amber Enterprises USA INC. - - 1227 14.55 -
e) |Purchase of Property, plant and equipments
NRV Designx Pravare Limired - - 38.74 2 - -
Amber Enrerpnses India Limured - - 7.58 % - -
f) |Purchase of intangible assets
NRV Designx Private Limired 6.21
g) |Remuneration paid to KMP's
Employee benetit expenses® - 118.26 3.67
Share based payment expenses”* 25.01 -
*Name of KMP
Mr. Dalpr Singh - 50.00 018
Mr. Jashir Singh - 013
Als. Divya - - - - Lo
Ms. Indu verma - . 717 +.26
Alr. Harpreet Sukhija 61.09
**Name of KMP
2501

M. Harpreer Sukhija

h) |Unsecured loan received
Amber Entempnses India Limited 12,946.00 3,300.00 -

i) |Repayment of unsecured loan
Amber Enterprses India Limited 13,270.00 2,890.00

j) |Interest accrued and paid on unsecured loan

Amber Enterpnses India Limated 192.27 27557 =
k) |Corporate guarantee taken from Holding Company* 2,500.00 6,000.00
1) |Extnguish of corp g taken from Holding Company* - 1,000.00
~ = .

(T4is space has leen left blank intentionally)
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The following transactions were carried out with related parties in the ordinary course of business for the vear ended 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024:

Particulars

Holding Company

Entities over which significant
influence is exercised

Key management personnel

31 March 2025 31 March 2024

31 March 2025

31 March 2024

31 March 2025

31 March 2024

B)

a)

b)

)

d)

€)

2

h)

Balances at year end

‘Trade receivables

Amber Enterpases India Limited

Sidwal Refengeranon Industres Prvare Limuted
1L JIN Electromies (Indag Prvare Limited

Trade payables
Amber Enterprises India Limired

L JIN Electromes (India) Pavare Limared

Payables for capital goods
NRV Designx Privare Limuted

Unsecured loan reccived (disclosed under long term borrowings)
Amber Enterprises India imited

I d

on d loan 1 undcr other

current financials liabilites)

d (discl

Amber Enrerprises India himured

Corporate guarantee taken*®

Amber Enterprises India hmited

Payable to KMP's (disclosed under other current financial liabilities)
Ms. Indu Verma

Mr. Harpreet Sukhija

Me. Daljir Singh

Post-employment benefits of KMP's
Mr. Dalpr Singh
Mr. Jashir Singh

Ms. Indu Verma

Mr. Harpreer Sukhija

467.16 286.62

16968

30411

2,562.90 2,886.90

042 33.07

26,400.00 23,900.00

891

27193

393

192

63,41

.00

0.57
1040
45.00

0.38

1220

0.50

1.32
Llo
(15503

* Guaranrees taken by the Company mncludes corporate guarantee from Holding Company for working capital borrowings and term loans. The original sanctioned limits of working capital borrowings and
term loans sanctioned by the banks has been disclosed above.

Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties
The transactions of sale and purchases with related parties are made on rerms equivalent o those prevaling m arm’s length transactions. The outstanding balances at the year end of trading achvines are

generally unsceured. Interest is charged as per terms of the conteact wath the related parties which 1s at arm’s length. The net outstanding balances are settled generally in cash.

There have been no guarantees provided or recerved for any related party receivables or payables other than disclosed above.

For the year ended 31 March 2025, the Company has not recorded any impairment of receivables relating to amounts owed by related parties (31 March 2024: INR Nil lakh). This assessment is underaken

each financial year through examining the financial position of the related party and the marker in which the related party operates.

(This spaace has been left blank intentionally)
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For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

38 Tax expense
‘The major components of income tax expense for the years ended 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024 arc:

Profit or loss section

Current income tax:

Current income tax charge . 451.34 164.60

Current rax expense pertaining to prior years (4.04) -
446.70 164.60

Deferred tax

Relaring to origination and reversal of temporary differences 208.12 116.02

Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit and loss 654.82 280.62

OCI section
Deferred tax related to items recognised in OCI during the year:

Re-measurement gain on defined benefit obligatdons 1.32 1.37
Deferred tax charged to OCI 1.32 1.37

Reconciliation of rax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by domestic tax rate for 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024:

Accounting profit before tax 2,528.86 995.43
Income tax using the Company's domestic tax rate * 25.17% 25.17%
At India’s statutory income tax rate” 636.51 250.53
Tax effect of adjustment to reconcile expected income tax expense to reported income tax

Non-deductible expenses for tax purposes 18.31 30.09
Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit and loss 654.82 280.62

* Domestic tax rate applicable to the Company has been computed as follows

Base rax rate 22% 22%
Surcharge (% of tax) 10% 10%
Cess (Yo of rax) 4% 4%
Applicable rate 25.17% 25.17%

Unused tax credits:

Capital losses

During the Y 2020-2021, the Company has not recognised deferred tax of INR 37.52 lakh on unused long term capital losses and INR 88.03 lakh on
unused short term capital losses under the head Capital Gains as the Company is not likely to generate taxable income under the same head in foresceable
future. These losses will expire in financial year ending 31 March 2029.

39 Asscts pledged/mortgaged/hypothecated as security
The carrying amounts of assets pledged/ hypothecated/mortgaged as security for long-term and short-term borrowings arc:

Particulars As at As at

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Current assets
Inventories 3,403.04 2,544.38
Trade receivables 5,619.76 6,146.14
Cash and cash equivalents 1,810.25 1,818.81
Other bank balances 6.24 -
Loans 9.47
Other financial assets 230.98 9.06
Other current assers 599.39 432.42
Total current assets pledged/hypothecated as security 11,679.13 10,950.81

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment 14,920.82 14,060.97
Total assets pledged/mortgaged/hypothecated as security 26,599.95 25,011.78
— A"ﬂ Prive
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40 Ratio Analysis and its elements

SI. |Ratio Measurement Numerator Denominator 31 March 2025 31 March 2024 Change Remarks
No. unit
Ratio Ratio
I |Current ratio Times Current assets Current habilities .73 0.77 (490" 5) [ Note 1D below
2 |Debt-equity ratio Times Toral debt Sharcholder's equiry 1.36 206 (33.88" ) |Note B below

[Long-term borrowmngs +
Short-term borrowings|

3 |Debt service coverage Trmes Llarnings available for debt [ Debt service [finance 1.34 0.62 117.74" o |Note B below
ratio service cost as per Profit &
[Net Profit after taxes + Loss Account +
Non-cash operating principal repayments
expenses ike depreciation (other than pre-
and other amortizations + payments, if any)]

Interest + other
adjustments hke loss on sale
of Fixed assets etc.|

+ |Return on equity ratio|  Percentage Net Profits after taxes — 30.61" 497" 104.46" o Note B below
Preference Dividend (if any)
5 |Inventory turnover Times Revenue from operations Average inventories 16.22 12.94 25.34" 0| Note B below
ratio ((Opening + Closing
balance) / 2)
6 |Trade receivables Times Revenue from operations Average trade 8.20 6403 36.00% [Note B below
turnover ratio receivables [(Opening
balance + Closing
balance) / 2]
7 |Trade payables Times Total purchascs Average trade payables 3.09 231 33.43" | Note C below
turnover ratio ((Opening + Closing
balance) / 2)
8 |Net capital turnover Times Revenue from operations Working capital (11.14) (10.19) 9.32"0 | Note A below
ratio Current assets -
Current liabili
9 |Net profit ratio Percentage Net profit after taxes Revenue from 3.88" 211% 84.12"0|Note B below
operations
10 |Return on capital Percentage Profit before interest and Capital Employed 26,200 17.39% 50700 Note B below
employed taxes (Tangible Net Worth +

Total Debt + Deferred
Tax Linbility)

11 |Return on investment | Percentage | Interest from bank deposits | Weighted time average 7.33% 7.12% 2.89°s|Note A below
bank deposits
Notes:
A There 15 no significant change (253 or more) in FY 2024-23 in comparison to I7Y 2023-24.

B The reasons for significant change in ratio is due to optimum unlization of capacity, increase in production, revenue and profits of the Company.
C  The ncrease in ratio 1s primanly due to revised payment terms of MSME vendors as per MSME Act.
D The current ratio is less than 1 1s primarily due to better payment terms with creditors.

(This spece has been intentionally left blank)
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41 Leases

Company as a lessee
The Company has leases for plant and machmery, office prenmses and related facthues. These are short term lease for period of less than one years and are further renewable by mutual
se’and “lease of low value assets” recogmuion exemptions for these leases. The lease payments for such leases for the

consent on agreed terms. The Company apphes the “short-term
year amounts to INR (189 lakh (31 March 2024 [NR 3.37 lakh).

Further, the Company do not have any leases which qualifies the recogmuion prnncipal of lease habilities and Right-of-use assets as set out i the accounnng policy.

(Thes spece has been left blanks imtentionally)
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A

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Employee benefit obligations

Contribution to Defined Contribution Plans

The Company has defined contribution plans. Contributions are made to provident fund in India for employees as per regulanons. The contributions are made o registered
provident fund administered by the government. The obligation of the Company 1s hmited to the amount contributed and it has no further contractual nor any constructive

obligation. The expense recognised during the vear towards defined contribution plan 1s as under:

Particulars For the year For the year
ended ended
March 312025 | March 312024
Limployer's contribution to Provident l'und 4414 42.47
limployer's contribution to Emplovee State Insurance 0.71 2.01
Lmployer's contribution to Tabor Welfare Fand 4.09 <
Lmployer's contribution to National pension scheme 1.58 -
Expense recognised during the year 50.52 44.48
Gratuity
As at As at

Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Current Non-current Current Non-current
Gratuity 9.42 112.82 8.93 107.69
Total 9.42 112.82 8.93 107.69

Disclosure of gratuity

The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan (funded). The Company’s defined benefit gratuity plan is a final salary plan for employees, which requires contributions to be
made ro a separately administered fund. Gratuity (being administered by a ‘Trust) is computed as 15 days salary, for every completed year of service or part thereof n excess of 6
months and is payable on retirement/termination/resignation. The Gratuity plan is governed by the Payment of Grawty Act, 1972, Under the act, employee who has completed
five years of service is entitled to specific benefit. The level of benefits provided depends on the member’s length of service and salary at retirement/termination/resignation. T'he
Gratuity plan for the Company is a defined benefit scheme where annual contributions as demanded by the insurer are deposited to a Gratuity Trust Fund established to provide
gratuity benefits. The Trust has taken an insurance policy, whereby these contributions are transferred to the insurer. The Company makes provision of such gratuity asset/liability

in the books of account on the basis of actuarial valuation carried out by an independent actuary.

Amount recognised in the statement of profit and loss is as under:

Description For the year ended For the year ended

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Current service cost 24.55 19.77
Interest cost on defined benefit obligation 8.48 6.93
Net impact on profit (before tax) 33.03 26.70
Actuarial loss recognised during the year 5.25 5.44
Amount recognised in total comprehensive income 38.28 32.14
Change in the present value of obligation:
Description For the year ended For the year ended

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Present value of defined benefit obligation as at the beginning of the year 120.87 92.37
Current service cost 24.55 19.77
Interest cost 8.76 6.93
Benefits paid (2.66) (3.90)
Actuarial loss 6.69 5.70
Present value of defined benefit obligation as at the end of the year 158.21 120.87
The Company expects to contribute INR 29.35 lakh (31 March 2024 : INR 24.39 lakh) to gratuity fund in the next financial year
Movement in the plan assets recognised in the balance sheet is as under:
Description For the year ended For the year ended

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the year 4.25 -
Lixpected return on plan assets 0.28 -
Contributions 30.00 3.99
Benefits paid out of Planned Asset Funds - -
Actuarial gain on planned assct 1.44 0.26
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year 35.97 4.25
“100%0 of fund is managed by Insurance Company.
Reconciliation of present value of defined benefit obligation and the fair value of assets:
Description For the year ended For the year ended

31 March 2025 /.’:J-N 2024
Present value of funded obligation as at the end of the year 158.21 / na\ =Ty I/e 120.87
Iair value of plan assets as at the end of the year funded starus 35.97 m 4.25

122.24

Unfunded/funded net liability recognized in balance sheet

-

N\ | U662
| B |
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(v) Remeasurement gains/(losses) in other comprehensive income

(vi)

(vii)

Description For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
\ctuarial (gain)/loss from change in demographic assumption B -
Actuarial loss from change in financial assumption 8.23 5.97
Acruarial (gain) from experience adjustment (2.98) (0.53)
Total actuarial loss 5.25 5.44
Actuarial assumptions
Description For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Discount rate 6.75 " per annum 7.25 0 per annum
Rate of increase in compensation levels 6.00 v per annum 6.00 v per annum
Mortality TALM 2012 14 TALM 2012 11
Retirement age 58 Yeurs 58 Years
Sensitivity analysis for gratuity liability
Description For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Impact of change in discount rate
Present value of obligation at the end of the year 158.21 120.87
- Impact due to increase of 1% (13.11) (9.81)
- Impact due to decrease of 1% 15.13 11.32
Impact of change in salary increase
Present value of obligation at the end of the year 158.21 120.87
- Impact due to increase of 1% 15.09 11.35
- Impact duc to decrease of 1% (13.31) (10.01)

The sensitvity analyses above have been determined based on a method that extrapolates the impaet on defined benefir obligation as a result of reasonable changes in key
assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period. The sensitivity analyses are based on a change in a significant assumption, keeping all other assumptions constant. The
sensitivity analyses may not be representative of an actual change in the defined benefit obligation as it 1s unlikely that changes in assumptions would occur in 1solation from one

another.

(viii) Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation

Description

For the year ended

For the year ended

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Within next 12 months 8.50 8.94
Berween 15 years 34.78 22,46
11493 80.47

Beyond 5 years

The average duration of the defined benefit plan obligation at the end of the reporting period is 14 years (31 March 2024: 14 years).

(This space bas been lefi blank intentionally)
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Fair value disclosures

Fair values hierarchy
detined based on the ohservalnhey of

Fancil assers and fnancil abihines measured at fure value i the financal staremen are divided ineo three Levels of a Bue value lierarchy. The three level

significant inpurs to the measurement, as follows

Level I: Quored prices (unadjusted) i achive markets for fimanaal mstruments.
Level 2: The ¢
possible on enniry
Level 3: It one or more of the significant inpurs 15 not based on observable macker dara, the mstrument s included i level 3

tlue of financal mstruments that are not traded nan active market 15 derermined using, valuation rechmyues which masimuse the use of observable marker dara ey as lurle as

ecthic eshimat

Financial instruments measured at fair value - recurring fair value measurements
The tollowing rable shows the levels within the luerarchy of financl assers and financial labihtes measured ar fur value on i recurmng basis.

Particulars Level 31 March 2025 Level 31 March 2024

Financial liabilitics

Foregn eschange forward contracts Jrefer (a) below]

Leved 2 15,40 Tovel 2 =

Valuation process and technique used to determine fair value
Ihe tair value ot toreign exchange torward contracts 15 based on valuanon rechmiques, which employs the use of market observable mputs of panang of forward contracts as at the balance sheet date.

There have been no reanster berween three levels defined above during the year ended 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024,
Fair value of instruments measured at amortised cost ’
FFair value of instruments measured at amortised cost tor which fair value s disclosed 15 as follows:
s 31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Particulars Level = - =

Carrying value Fair value Carrying value Fair value
Financial assets
Loans Level 3 9.47 947 - -
Trade receivables Level 3 3,619.76 5,619.76 6,140.14 6,146.14
Cash and cash cquivalents Level 3 1,810.25 1,810.25 8.81 18.81
Other bank balances Level 3 0.24 6.24 . -
Other financial assets Level 3 263.27 263.27 40.27 40.27
Total fi ial assets 7,708.99 7,708.99 8,005.22 8,005.22
Financial liabilities
Borrowings Level 3 9,639.22 9,639.22 10,640.37 10,640.37
Trade payable Level 3 12,617.81 12,617.81 11, 167.60 11,167 .60
Other finanaal habnlines Level 3 880.23 880.23 48.37 948.37
Total financial liabilities 23,137.26 23,137.26 22,756.34 22,756.34

ssessed that Eair values of current loans, current financial asscts, cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances, trade recavables, current borrowings, trade payables and other
s approsimate their respective carrying amounts largely due to the short-rerm matunities Lhe fair value of the financi ts and liabilities is included ar
strument could be exchanged n a current transaction between willing partics, other than in a forced or liquidation sale. The following methods and assumptions were used

The management
current financial by

the amount at v
to estimare the t

of the customer. Based on this

s of these receivables,

evaluanon, allowances are taken into account tor the expected credit los:

The fair values of the Company’s interest-beanng borrowings, loans and other financial labili

at the end of the reporting period. The own non-performance risk as at 31 March 2023 was ass

ines are

s which are subject to changes i underlying mterest rare indices. Further, the credir spread on these

All the long term borrowing facilines availed by the Company are vanable rate facil
approximation from market rates applicable to the

<s. The management belies
¢ value of these borrowings are approximate to their respective carrying values.

s that the current rate of mterest on these loans are in clos

subject to change with changes m Company's creditworthe
Company. Theretore, the management esimates that the f

There have been no transter between three levels defined above dunng the year ended 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024,

Financial risk management

Financial instruments by category
As at As at
Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
FVTPL FVOCI A ised cost FVTPL FvocCl Amortised cost
Financial assets
Loans - - 947 - - -
Trade recavables - - 5,619.76 - - 6,146.14
Cash and cash cquivalents - - 1,810.25 - - 1,818.81
Other bank balances - - 6.24 - - -
Other financial assets - - 263.27 - - 40.27
Total - - 7,708.99 - - 8,005.22
Financial liabilities
Borrowings - - 9,639.22 - - 10,640.37
Trade payable - - 12,617.81 - - 11,167.60
Other financial habihnies 15.40 - 880.23 - - 948.37
Total 15.40 - 23,137.26 - - 22,756.34

Risk Management
The Company’s activines expose it to market nsk, hquidity nsk and credit nsk. The Company's Board of Directc
note explains the sources of nsk which the entity 1s exposed ro and how the ennty manages the ns!

[t

sponsibility tor the establishment and oversight of the Company's risk
and the related impact in the financial starements.

management framework. Ths

Risk Exposure arising from M Manag

Credir risk Cash and cash equivalents, trade Ageing analysis Bank deposits, diversification of asset base, credit hmiats and collareral.
receivables, financial asset:

at amortised cost

measured

Liguidity nsk Borrowings and other habilines Rolling cash How Availability of committed credit lines and borrowing facilities
torecasts
Market ask - o Recogmsed tinancial assets and Cash tlow torecashing Forward contract/hedging, it required

labilines not denonnated i Indian
rupee (INR)

Market nsk - interest rate Long-term and short-term borrowings | Sensitvary analysis Negotianon of terms thar refleer the market factors

at vanable rates

treasury department (of the Compan
s, such as forcign exchange risk, interest rate nsk, eredit nsk and mvestment of excess hyuidity.

The Company’s nisk management is carned our by a centr.
overall iisk management, as well as policies covering speat

(This spave Fuas beon eft bank inientianally)

J under policies approved by the board of directors. The board of directors pro, L\@Nli‘ wﬁ[,y$
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A) Credit risk
Credir nisk 15 the nsk that a
customers, placing deposits, ete, The Company’s maximum exposure 1o credit nsk s himated o the carnmg amount of followng types of

sounterparty tuls to discharge an obliganon o the Company. The Company s exposed to this nsk for vanous inancal mstruments, for example by granting loans and

recenwables

- cash and cash cquivalents,
- trade recemvables,
-loans and recavables carned ar amortised cost, and

- deposis with banks

a) Credit risk management

The Company credit aisk based on mrermal credir rainng svsrem, contnuously momtoring detaults of customers and other unterparnies, dennticd ather mdividually or by the

sesses and man

ch class of financual mstruments with different characrenstes. The Company a

Inrernal credit ranng 15 pertormed tor

npany, and meorporates this mtomuanon nto s credit nsk contie
the e

wing credit ranngs to cach class of financual assets based on the assumptions, mputs and factors speatfic o the dass of financual asscts.

A Low
B: Medwm
C: High

crs under credit nsk

Credit rating Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
A: Low Other inancul asscrs 263.27 40.27
Loans 947 -
Cash and cash cquivalents 1,810.25 1,818.81
Other bank balances 6.24
Trade recavables 3,619.76 O,146.14
C: High Trade recavables 1348 13.48

Coarsh am
Credir ask related 1o cash and cash cquivalents and bank deposits s managed by only accepting highly rated banks and diversifying bank deposits and accounts in different banks.

und bank depasics

ih equiril

The Company closely monitors the credit-worthiness of the debrors through inrernal systems that are contigured to define credir imits of customers, thereby, hmiting the credit nsk 1o pre-caleulared
tor amounts receivable thar become past due.

amounts. The Company assesses inerease in eredit risk on an ongoing bas

Otter financial assers measured ot anortised cost
s managed by momtonng the recoverability of such amounts

rs. Credit nsk related o these other financal asset

Other financial assers measured ar amomised cost includes sceunty deposits and oth
continuously, while at the same time internal control systemin place ensure the amounts are withan detined liirs.

b) Expected credit losses
Trude recesrables

(1) The Company recogmses hitenme expected eredir losses on trade receivables using a simplitied approach and uses historical information ro arrive at loss percentage relevant to each category of rrade

receivables.

Ageing 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Gross carrying | Expected loss| Expected credit | Gross carrying Expected loss Expected credit
amount - trade rate* loss* amount - trade rate*® loss*
receivables receivables
Current bur not due 4181.24 0000 = 466777 Q.00 =
0-90 days 140547 0.00%% - 1,326.06 0007 -
91-180 days 2177 0.000% - 60.39 0.00%%
181-270 days .01 0.00" - 2542 0.00%
271-365 da 0.37 0.00%7% - 073 000 -
366-455 da; 0.50 0.00% = 38.56 0.00%
456-545 days 0.13 0.00%% - 1.08 0.00%%
546-635 d: - 0.00% = 3.54 0.00% -
636-725 days [IN0] 0007 = 003 0.00% s X
726-815 days 0.16 0.00% - 0.09 0.00%0
816-905 days , 0.00% - 6.30 0.00%
906-995 days - 0.00% - 247 0.00%%
996-1085 days = 0.00% - 0.03 0.00% -
More than 1085 S 13.48 100.00% 1348 2415 35.85"%0 13.48
Total 5,633.24 13.48 6,159.62 13.48

*Amount is below the rounding off norms of the Company

(i) Reconalianon of loss allowanee provision from beginning ro end of reporming period:
Reconciliation of loss allowance Trade receivables
Loss allowance on 01 April 2023 13.48

Less: Changes in loss allowances due to unhsanon =
Add: Changes in loss allowances due ro creanon -
Loss allowance on 31 March 2024 13.48

n loss allowances due to uthsation

Less: Change:
Add: Changes in loss allowances due to creation -
Loss allowance on 31 March 2025 13.48

Orber fimancial assets measured af amortised cost

Since this category includes loans and

policy is to provides for 12

credit los

sing individual financial instruments for expectanon of any
o apply consistently to entire population For such inancial
upon sigmificant ncrease n credit nsk. The Company does not have

s on loans and advances by

The Company provides for expected credir loss
receivables of varied narures and purpose, there is no teend that the Company can draw
month expected credir losses upon inital recognition and provides tor ifeime expected credit loss
g their low credir nsk nature.

the Compan

any expeeted loss based

impairment recognised on such assets conside
B) Liquidity risk
Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining s
obligations when duc. Due to the nature of the business, the Company maintans flesibiliry in funding by mantaining avadability under commutted facilines.

=

icient cash and marketable secunnes and the avalabihty of funding through an adequate amount of commutted credit faalines to meet

hYE into account the liguidity of the
macket m which the entity operates. In addition, the Company’s liquidity m

cet higquidhity ratios against intemal and external regularory requirements and mainaining debt

and cash and cash equivalents on the basis of expecred cash tlows. The Company tak
gement policy involves projecting cash flows in major currencies and considenng the level of liquid assers necessary ro
ancing pl

agement momitors rolling forecasts of the Company’s liquidity posir

meet these, monitonng balanc

L
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a)

b)

®

(n)

b)
i)

"D)

/.

Financing arrangements

The Company had access to the followmg undeawn borrowing Facilings ar the end of the reporting penod

31 March 2025 | 31 March 2024
Exprring within one vear (cash credie, bank loans and other facilines) 948003 251490
- Eapiring bevond one vear (hank loans) S :
9,480.03 9,514.90

Maturities of financial liabilities

ITe rables below amalvse the Company’s financial labilities into relevant matunty groupings based on their contractual maninnes forall non-denvanve financial labilines

The amounts disclosed n the table are the conmracmal undiscounted cash Aows. Balinces due within 12 months equal their carmang balances as the mmpact of discountmg 1s not sigtcant.

31 March 2025 Less than 1 1-3 years 3-5 years More than 5 years Total
year
Non-derivative
Borrowings 2,105.10 3,521.17 1,285.15 2,727.80 9,639.22
Trade pavable 12,617 81 - - - 12,617.81
Orther financial habihines 880.23 - - - 880.23
Derivative
Foreygn exchange torward contracrs 1540 - = 3 15.40
Total 15,603.14 3,521.17 1,285.15 2,727.80 23,152.66
31 March 2024 Less than L 1-3 years 3-5 years More than 5 years Toral
year
Non-derivative
Borrowings 20824 3,738.82 1L319.11 300000 10,640.37
1L167.60 - - B 11,167.60
94837 - - - 948.37
14,198.41 3,738.82 1,819.11 3,000.00 22,756.34

Market risk

Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk thar the far value or furure cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes i foreygn exchange rates. The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in
foreign exchunge rates relates prmanly to the Company’s operating activities (when revenue or expense is denominated m a foreign currency).

ssocuted wirh flucruanons i foreign currencies relating ro foreign curreney labiines. The following are

The Company uses foreign currency forward exchange contracts 1o hedge s os

outstanding derivatives contracts:

Nature of hedge instrument Description of hedge 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Amount in Amountin INR |Amount in foreign| Amount in INR
foreign currency Lakh currency (USD) Lakh
(USD)
Contract : Forward contract
Forward contract T'o take protecnon agunst appreciation in Indian Rupees against USD 11,70,024.60) 1,001.31 46,000.00) 38.35)
pavable n respect of imports agamst lerter of credi
Unhedged foreign currency risk exposure in foreign currency:
The Company exposure to foreign currency risk ar the end of the reporting period expressed in INR, are as follows:
Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
usD usD

Financial assets
Trade receivables 102.67 77605
Financial liabilities
I'rade payables 496.59 1,009.03
Net exposure to foreign currency risk (liabilities)/assets (393.92) (232.98)
Sensitivity
The sensivity of profit or loss and equaty to changes n the exchange rates agises mainly from foreign currency denomimated financial mstruments.
Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
USD sensitivity
INR/USD- increase by 243 “o (previous vear: 2.10%)* (9.57) (4.89)
INR/USD- decrease by 243 *a (previous year 2 10%)° 9.57 1.89

* Moiding ull other vartables constant

Interest rate risk

Liabilities

s policy 15 m munimise mterest rate cash low nsk exposures on long-temm financing. The Company is exposed ro changes in market interest rates through bank borrowings at vanable
- Company’s nvestments i fixed deposits all pay fixed mterest rares

The Compa
INICTEsT rates.

uterest rute risk exposnre

Below 15 the overall exposure of the Company to mterest rate nsk:

Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Variable rate borrowing 9,639.22 10,640.37
Fixed rate borrowing - -
Total borrowings 9,639.22 10,640.37
Semsitirity

Below 1s the sensivaty of profir or loss and equity changes i interest rates.

Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Interest sensitivity™®

Interest cates — ncrease by 100 bps (previous year: 100 bps)© 96.39 10640
Interest rates — decrease by 100 bps (previous vear: 100 bps)® (96.39) (106.40)

* Holding ull other vartabies constamt

cate psk as defoed n Ind AS 107, suice seuher the capnang amount

thesefore aot subect o intess

nor the e

Price risk
The Company does not have any sigmificant investments n equiry instruments which ereate an exposure 1 price nsk.
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45 Capital management

(a

For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued cquiry capital, securines premium and all orher equity reseeves arrnburable 1o the equiry holders of the Company. The
prmary objeenve of the Comp, capital management s ro maximise the sharcholder value,

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments i hght of changes i cconomie conditions and the requirements of the financial covenants. To mamtan o adjust the
steucture, the Company may adjust the d
borrowing divided by toral equiry.

dend payment o sharcholders, rerumn capital to sharcholders or issue new shares. The Company momitors capiral using a debr cquiry rano, which s

The Company includes within rotal borcowing, inrerest beaning loans and borrowings.

Debt equity ratio

Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Total borrowings 0,639.22 10,640.37
Toral equiry 7,077.24 3,165.78
Debt to equity ratio 1.36 2.06

In order to achieve this overall objeenve, the Company’s capital managemenr, amongse orher things, mms ro ensure thar it mee

tfinancial covenants attached o the mrerese-beanng loans and

borrawings that define capital structure requirements. Breaches in meening the financial covenants would permit the bank to mmediately eall loans and borrowings. There have been no breaches

the fimancial covenants of any interest-beanng loans and borrowing in the current peniod. No changes were made i the objectives, polcies or processes tor managing capital duning, the years ended
31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024

(his spoace s Deent Lt blank intentionally)
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46 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

Indian Accountung Standard 115 Revenue from Contracts with Customers (“Ind AS 1157), establishes a framework for determining whether, how much and when revenue 1s recognised and

requires disclosures about the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenues and cash flows ansing from customer contracts. Under Ind AS 115, revenuce is recognised through a 3-step

approach:

(1) Idennfy the contract(s) with customer;

(i) Identify separate performance obligations in the contract;

(1) Determine the transaction price;

{iv) Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations; and
(v) Reeognise revenue when a performance obligation is satisfied.

()

Disaggregation of revenue
Set out below s the disaggregation of the Company’s revenue from contracts with customers:

Sale of products

31 March 2025

31 March 2024

Revenue from customers (transferred at point of time)
Total revenue from contracts with customers
Revenue by geography

45,641.15

31,980.17

45,641.15

31,980.17

43,699.37

29,263.04

India
Ourside India 1,941.78 271713
Total revenue from contracts with customers 45,641.15 31,980.17

Timing of revenue recognition

Goods transferred at a point in time

45,6041.15

31,980.17

Total revenue from contracts with customers

45,641.15

31,980.17

Revenue recognised in relation to contract liabilities
Ind AS 115 also requires disclosure of ‘revenue recognised in the reporting period that was included in the contract liability

(b)

ance at the beginning of the period’ and ‘revenue recognised in

the reporting period from performance obligations satisfied (or partially satisfied) in previous periods. Same has been disclosed as below:
Description Year ended Year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Revenue recognised in the reporting period that was included in the contract liability balance at the beginning of the period 29.25 103.19
Revenue recognised in the reporting period from performance obligations satisfied (or partially satisfied) in previous periods - -
Total 29.25 103.19
(c) Contract balances
Description As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024
Non-current Current Non-current Current
Trade receivables - 5,619.76 - 6,146.14
Contract liabilities related to sale of goods
Advance from customers - 183.00 - 29.25
Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on terms of 7 days to 90 days.
Contract liabilities consist of short-term advances received from customer to supply goods.
(d) Reconciliation of revenue recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss with Contract price
Description Year ended Year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Contract price 46,194.81 32,105.42
Less: Sales return (350.64) (120.73)
Less: Discount, rebates, credits ete. (203.02) (4.52)
Revenue from operations as per Statement of Profit and Loss 45,641.15 31,980.17

(e) Performance obligations
The performance obligation is satisficd upon delivery of the product and payment is generally due within 7 days to 90 days from delivery.

(This space has been left blank infentionatly)
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(a)

(b)

(©)

(d)

Share based payments

Scheme details

The Holding Company has Employee Stock Option Scheme e, "Amber Enterprises India Limited - Employee Stock Option Plan 2017" ("Plan"), under which the Nomination and
Remuneraton Committee, at its discretion, may grant share options of the Holding Company o cligible employees of the Holding Company or to the emplovees of any of its subsidiary
sriod of 5 (Five) years from the date of Grant. Vesting of Opuions

company. Under this plan, the oprions shall vest not carlier than 1 (One) year and not later than maximum Vesting P
would be subject to connnued employment with the Company and thus the Options would vest essentially on passage of time.

Number of options granted Grant date Vesting dare Exercise period Exercise price Fair value on grant date
3,750 13-May-22 12-NMay-23 3 years from date of vesting 2,879.45 1,372.00
3,750 13-May-22 12-May-24 3 years from date of vesting 2.879.45 1,533.90
3,750 12 May 25 3 years from date of vesting 2,879.45 1,671.00
3,750 13-May-22 12-May-26 3 vears from date of vesting 1,825.20

Compensation expenses arising on account of the share based payments

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Lixpenses ansing from cquity — scttled share-based pavment transactions 41.35 73.04
Total 41.35 73.04

Fair value on the grant date
The fair value at grant date 15 determined using “Black Scholes Pricing Model” which takes into account the exercise price, term of the option, share price at grant date and expected price

volatility of the underlying shares, expected dividend yield and the risk free interest rate for the term of the option.

The following mputs were used to determine the fair value for options granted on 13 May 2022,

Description Vest 1 Vest 2 Vest 3 Vest 4

Number of options granted 3,750.00 3,750.00 3,750.00 3,750.00
Grant date 13-May-22 13-May-22 13-May-22 13-May-22
Iinancial year of exercise 2023-24 1o 2026-27 2024-25 o 2027-28 2025-26 o 2028-29 2026-27 to 2029-30
Share price on grant date (in INR) 337945 3,379.45 3,379.45 3,379.45
Expected life (in years) 25 35 4.5 5.5
Price volatility of company's share * 47.10% 43.70" 41.90" 41.90%
Risk free interest rate 6.70% 710" T7.20% 7.40%
lixercise price (in INR) 2,879.45 2,879.45 2,879.45 2,879.45
Dividend yield 0.29", 0.29" 0.29"% 0.29"
Fair value of opton (in INR) 1,372.00 1,533.90 1,674.00 1,825.20

* The measure of volatlity used is the annualized standard deviation of the continuously compounded rates of return of stock over the expected lives of different vests, prior to grant date.

Volatility has been caleulated based on the daily closing market price of the Company's stock on BSE over these years.

Movement in share options during the year

Description Number of options Weighted average exercise
price
Outstanding as on 01 April 2023 15,000 2,879.45
Options granted during the year - 8
Options forfeited/lapsed/expired during the year - -
Options exercised during the year - -
Options outstanding as at 31 March 2024 "# 15,000 2,879.45
Options granted during the year 3 -
Options forfeited/lapsed/expired during the year - -
Options exercised during the year 1,000 2,879.45
Options outstanding as at 31 March 2025 "# 14,000 2,879.45
Exercisable at the end of the period. 6,500 -

" The weighted average remaining contractual life of the share options outstanding at the end of yvear 1s 2.72 vears (31 March 2024: 3.61 years).
# The weighted average fair value of share options outstanding at the end of year is INR 1,617.65 per share option (31 March 2024: INR 1,601.28 per share option).
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31 March 2025 i 31 March 2024

a) Gross amount required to be spent by the Company durmg the vear ZE.Sl}l 16.32
b; \mount approved by the Board to be spent during the vear. 25.50' 16.32
c) Amount spent during the year ended on 31 March 2025: In cash Yet to be paid in cash Total

1 Construction/acquisition of any asset ¥

i) On purposes other than i) above 156.11 = 156.11
d) Amount spent during the year ending on 31 March 2024: In cash Yet to be paid in cash Total

1) Construction/acquisition of any asset .

) On purposes other than (i) above 18.00 < 18.00
(e) Details of spent on other than ongoing projects: 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
(1) Preventing and promoting health care, sanitation and making avalable safe drnking water 200 8.00]
() Promoung cducaton meluding special educarion and employment enhancing vocation skills especally among children, women, elderly and the differently abled (BN -
and livelihood enhancement projects

(iif) Training to promote rural sports, natonally recognized sports, Paralympic sports and Olympics sports 10.00 10.00
Total 15611 18.00

t) There are no unspent amount durmg at the end of vear,

g) Details of excess CSR expenditure: 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Opening Balance as at 1 April* 1.68 -
Amount required to be spent durng the year 28.50 16.32
Amount not approved to be carnied forward* (1.68) =
Amount spent during the vear 136.11 18.00
Closing Balance 31 March 127.61 168

*Vhe Board in its meeting held on 16 May 2024 has decided and approved wot to carry Jorward any balance of the CSR spent in the financial year 2023-24. Consequently, the excess amount of INR 1.68 1akh spent during the financial year
2023 - 24 will nat be adjusted against the current CR ablgations for the financial year 2024-25

(This has been intentionally lefi blank)
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Segment information

The Company's primary business segment 15 reflected based on principal business acuvities carried on by the Company. Mans
Operating Decision Makers (CODAL) and evaluates the Company's performance and allocates resourees based on analysis of the various performance indicators of the Company as
ments as per Ind AS 108- Operating Scgments. The Company operates

aging Director have been identified as the Chief

n one reportable business segment e,

a single umr, Therefore, there are no separate reportable business s
manufacturing of consumer durable products and is primarily operating in India and hence, considered as single geographical segment (refer note 46 for revenue by geography).
Majority of the revenue is denived from one geography and one external customers (who idividually constitutes more than 10”4 of the Company's total revenue) amounting ro INR
5,266.17 lakh (31 March 2024: INR 5,269.85 lakh from one external customers who idividually constitutes more than 10" s of the Company's total revenue).

Additional regulatory information
(1) The Company do not have any Benamu property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any Benami property. under the
Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made thercunder.

() The following rable summerises the transactions with the companies struck off under section 248 of Companies Act, 2013 or section 560 of Companies Act, 1956 for the year

ended 31 March 2025.

Nature of transactions with struck oft i i . z 7
Name of struck off company Ralance outstanding Relationship with the Struck off company, if any
company as on 31 March 2025
Sumitron Lxports Private Limited Purchase of Property, plant and equipments 0.02) Lixternal vendor
Sumitron Exports Private Limited Receipt of repair and maintenance services 0.45 External vendor

The Company don't have any transactions with the companies struck off under section 248 of Companies Act, 2013 or seetion 560 of Companies Act, 1956 for the year ended 31
March 2024.

(1) The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which are yet to be registered with the Registrar of Companies beyond the statutory period.

(iv) The Company has not entered into any scheme of arrangement which has an accounting impact on current or previous financial year.

(v) The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entites (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the
Intermediary shall:
(a) dircetly or indircetly lend or invest in other persons or entites identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ulimate Beneficiaries

Jor entity(ies), including forcign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or

(v1) The Company has not received any fund from any person(s
otherwise) that the Company shall:
(a} dircctly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entitics identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
(b) provide any guarantee, sccurity or the like on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries

(vi1) The Company have not any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the vear in the tax

assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961).

(viir) The Company has not traded or invested in crypto currency or virtual currency during the current or previous year.

(ix) "The Company has not been declared as wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender.

The Company has appointed independent consultants for conducting a transfer pricing study to determine whether the international transactions with associate enterprises and
s”. Adjustments, if any arising from the transfer pricing study shall be accounted for as and when the stdy is

specified domestic transactions were undertaken at “arm’s length ba
completed. The management confirms that all international transactions with associate enterprises and specified domestic transactions are undertaken at negotiated contracted prices
on usual commercial terms. Transfer pricing certificate under Section 9218 for the year ending 31 March 2024 has been obtained and there are no adverse comments requiring

adjustments in these accounts.

The Company has used accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout
the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software, except that audit trail feature is not enabled at the database level msofar as it relates to Microsoft 12365 accounting
software. Further no instance of audit trail feature being tampered with was noted in respect of accounting software where the audit trail has been enabled.

Additionally, the audit trail of prior years has been preserved by the Company as per the statutory requirements for record retention to the extent it was enabled and recorded in the
respective years

In pursuant to the recent amendment in Companies (Accounts) Rules 2014, the Company is maintaining proper books of account and other relevant books and papers in clectronic
mode which 15 accessible in India at all times. However, the books of account maintained in clectronic mode is currently not being backed-up on daily basis on a server physically
located in India for a period not more than 28 days in the accounting software due to design issue of Microsoft D365.

For S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP
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